Regular Meeting of the Board of Directors, March 27, 2025 Page 1

-

Hazel Hawkins

MEMORIAL HOSPITAL

REGULAR MEETING OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
SAN BENITO HEALTH CARE DISTRICT
911 SUNSET DRIVE, HOLLISTER, CALIFORNIA
THURSDAY, MARCH 27, 2025 —5:00 P.M.
SUPPORT SERVICES BUILDING, 2ND - FLOOR, GREAT ROOM
IN-PERSON AND BY VIDEO CONFERENCE

Members of the public may participate remotely via Zoom at the following link https://zoom.us/join
with the following Webinar ID and Password:
Meeting 1D: 991 5300 5433
Security Passcode: 007953

Mission Statement - The San Benito Health Care District is a public agency that serves as a responsive,
comprehensive health care resource for its patients, physicians, and the health care consumers of the
community.

Vision Statement - San Benito Health Care District is committed to meeting community health care needs
with quality care in a safe and compassionate environment.

AGENDA
Presented By:
1. Call to Order / Roll Call (Johnson)
2. Board Announcements (Johnson)
3. Public Comment (Johnson)

This opportunity is provided for members of the public to make a brief statement, not to exceed
three (3) minutes, on matters within the jurisdiction of this District Board, which are not
otherwise covered under an item on this agenda. This is the appropriate place to comment on
items on the Consent Agenda. Board Members may not deliberate or take action on an item not
on the duly posted agenda. Written comments for the Board should be provided to the Board
clerk or designee for the official record. Whenever possible, written correspondence should be
submitted to the Board in advance of the meeting to provide adequate time for its consideration.
Speaker cards are available.

4. Consent Agenda — General Business (Johnson)
The Consent Agenda deals with routine and non-controversial matters. The vote on the

Consent Agenda shall apply to each item that has not been removed. A Board Member
may pull an item from the Consent Agenda for discussion. One motion shall be made to
adopt all non-removed items on the Consent Agenda.

A. Consider and Approve Minutes of the Regular Meeting of the Board of Directors —
February 27, 2025.

B. Receive Officer/Director Written Reports
e Physician Services & Clinic Operations


https://zoom.us/join

Regular Meeting of the Board of Directors, March 27, 2025

¢ Skilled Nursing Facilities (Mabie Southside/Northside)
¢ Laboratory and Radiology

e Foundation

e Marketing

e PMO Project Summary

C. Consider and Approve Policies:
e Outbreak Investigation (Revised)
e Use of Portable Fans (Revised)
e Enhanced Barrier Precautions SNF (New)
e Infection Control and Prevention SNF (New)
e COVID-19 Prevention and Management SNF (New)

Recommended Action: Approval of Consent Agenda Items (A) through (C).

» Board Questions
» Motion/Second
» Action/Board Vote-Roll Call

5. Receive Informational Reports
A. Chief Executive Officer (Verbal Report)

e Transaction Update
e Update on Tariffs

» Public Comment

B. Chief Nursing Officer
e Dashboard — February 2025

» Public Comment
C. Finance Committee — March 24, 2025
e Financial Statements — February 2025
e Finance Dashboard — February 2025
e Supplemental Payments — February 2025

» Public Comment

6. Action Items

Page 2

(Casillas)
(Gross, Peil)
(Casillas)

(Descent)

(Robinson)

A. Consider Approval of Professional Services Agreement for Lorilee Sutter, M.D., in the amount of

$187,200.00 annually.

Recommended Action: Approval of Professional Services Agreement for Lorilee Sutter, M.D., in the

amount of $187,200.00 annually.

Report

Board Questions

Public Comment
Motion/Second
Action/Board Vote-Roll Call

vVVVYVYY



Regular Meeting of the Board of Directors, March 27, 2025 Page 3

7.

10.

B. Consider Approval of Proposed Amendments to Bylaws Regarding Committee Meetings.

Recommended Action: Approval of Amendments to Bylaws Regarding Committee Meetings.

» Report

» Board Questions

» Public Comment

» Motion/Second

» Action/Board Vote-Roll Call

Public Comment (Johnson)
This opportunity is provided for members to comment on the closed session topics, not to exceed three (3)
minutes.

Closed Session (Johnson)
See the Attached Closed Session Sheet Information.

Closed Session Report (Counsel)
Adjournment (Johnson)

The next Regular Meeting of the Board of Directors is scheduled for Thursday, April 24, 2025, at 5:00
p.m., Great Room.

The complete Board packet including subsequently distributed materials and presentations is available at
the Board Meeting, in the Administrative Offices of the District, and posted on the District’s website at
https://www.hazelhawkins.com/news/categories/meeting-agendas/. All items appearing on the agenda are
subject to action by the Board. Staff and Committee recommendations are subject to change by the Board.

Any public record distributed to the Board less than 72 hours prior to this meeting in connection with any
agenda item shall be made available for public inspection at the District office. Public records distributed
during the meeting, if prepared by the District, will be available for public inspection at the meeting. If the
public record is prepared by a third party and distributed at the meeting, it will be made available for
public inspection following the meeting at the District office.

Notes: Requests for a disability-related modification or accommodation, including auxiliary aids or
services, to attend or participate in a meeting should be made to District Administration during regular
business hours at 831-636-2673. Notification received 48 hours before the meeting will enable the District
to make reasonable accommodations.

Please note that room capacity is limited and is available on a first come first serve basis.


https://www.haz/
http://www.hazelhawkins.com/news/categories/meeting-agendas/
http://www.hazelhawkins.com/news/categories/meeting-agendas/
http://www.hazelhawkins.com/news/categories/meeting-agendas/

Page 1 of 2

SAN BENITO HEALTH CARE DISTRICT BOARD OF DIRECTORS
March 27, 2025

AGENDA FOR ClL OSED SESSION

Pursuant to California Government Code Section 54954.2 and 54954.5, the board agenda may describe closed session agenda
items as provided below. No legislative body or elected official shall be in violation of Section 54954.2 or 54956 if the closed
session items are described in substantial compliance with Section 54954.5 of the Government Code.

CLOSED SESSION AGENDA ITEMS

L] LICENSE/PERMIT DETERMINATION
(Government Code 854956.7)

Applicant(s): (Specify number of applicants)

L] CONFERENCE WITH REAL PROPERTY NEGOTIATORS
(Government Code §54956.8)

X CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL-EXISTING LITIGATION
(Government Code §54956.9(d)(1))

Name of case: In Re San Benito Health Care District, Case No. 3:24-cv-02266-JD, Northern District Court
(Appeal from Bankruptcy Court Case No. 23-50544 SLJ); NUHW Unfair Practice Charge No. SF-CE-2232-
M; CNA Unfair Practice Labor Charge No. SF-CE-2231-M

Case name unspecified:

L] CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL-ANTICIPATED LITIGATION
(Government Code §54956.9)

L] LIABILITY CLAIMS
(Government Code §54956.95)

Claimant: (Specify name unless unspecified pursuant to Section 54961):
Agency claimed against: (Specify name):

L] THREAT TO PUBLIC SERVICES OR FACILITIES
(Government Code §54957)

Consultation with: (Specify the name of law enforcement agency and title of officer):

O PUBLIC EMPLOYEE APPOINTMENT
(Government Code §54957)

Title:

Ol PUBLIC EMPLOYMENT
(Government Code §54957)

Title:



Page 2 of 2
PUBLIC EMPLOYEE PERFORMANCE EVALUATION
(Government Code §54957)

(Specify position title of the employee being reviewed):
Title:

PUBLIC EMPLOYEE DISCIPLINE/DISMISSAL/RELEASE
(Government Code §54957)

(No additional information is required in connection with a closed session to consider discipline,
dismissal, or release of a public employee. Discipline includes potential reduction of compensation.)

CONFERENCE WITH LABOR NEGOTIATOR
(Government Code 854957.6)

Agency designated representative:
Employee organization:
Unrepresented employee:

CASE REVIEW/PLANNING
(Government Code §54957.8)
(No additional information is required to consider case review or planning.)

REPORT INVOLVING TRADE SECRET
(Government Code 837606 & Health and Safety Code 8 32106)

Discussion will concern: (Specify whether discussion will concern proposed new service, program, or
facility):

1. Trade Secrets, Strategic Planning, Proposed New Programs, and Services.

Estimated date of public disclosure: (Specify month and year):

HEARINGS/REPORTS
(Evidence Code Sections 1156 and 1157.7; Health and Safety Code Section 32106)

Subject matter: (Specify whether testimony/deliberation will concern staff privileges, report of medical
audit committee, or report of quality assurance committee):

1. Report — Credentials

CHARGE ORCOMPLAINT INVOLVING INFORMATION PROTECTED
BY FEDERAL LAW (Government Code §54956.86)

(No additional information is required to discuss a charge or complaint pursuant to Section 54956.86.)

ADJOURN TO OPEN SESSION



e

Hazel Hawkins

MEMORIAL HOSPITAL

REGULAR MEETING OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
SAN BENITO HEALTH CARE DISTRICT
SUPPORT SERVICES BUILDING, 2"°-FLOOR, GREAT ROOM
IN PERSON AND BY VIDEO CONFERENCE

THURSDAY, FEBRUARY 27, 2025
5:00 P.M.
MINUTES

Directors Present
Bill Johnson, Board Member
Devon Pack, Board Member
Victoria Angelo, Board Member
Nick Gabriel, Board Member
Josie Sanchez, Board Member

Also Present
Mary Casillas, Chief Executive Officer
Mark Robinson, Chief Financial Officer
Amy Breen-Lema, Vice President, Ambulatory & Physician Services
Suzie Mays, Vice President, Information & Strategic Services
Michael Bogey, MD, Chief of Staff
Heidi A. Quinn, District Legal Counsel

. Call to Order/Roll Call

Director Johnson called the meeting to order at 5:00 PM. A quorum was present, and attendance was taken
by roll call. Directors Johnson, Pack, Angelo, Gabriel, and Sanchez were present.

. Board Announcements
President Johnson stated he and Mr. Fendler were provide a tour of the hospital by CEO Mary Casillas.
and noted a positive experience in the surgery center.

. Public Comment

An opportunity for public comment was provided, and individuals were given three minutes to address
the Board Members and Administration.

Public comment was received.

. Consent Agenda - General Business
A. Consider and Approve Minutes of the Regular Meeting of the Board of Directors —

January 23, 2025.

B. Consider and Approve Minutes of the Special Meeting of the Board of Directors —
February 4, 2025.

C. Receive Officer/Director Written Reports - No action required.

Page 1



e Provider Services & Clinic Operations

e Skilled Nursing Facilities (Mabie Southside/Northside)
e Laboratory and Radiology

e Foundation Report

e Public Relations

e PMO Project Summary Report

D. Consider and Approve Policies:

Cybersecurity Management Process (New)
Observation Status (Revised)

Layoff and Recall Policy (New Policy)
Volunteer Assignments (New Policy)
Payroll Policy (Revised)

Violence in the Workplace (Revised)

Director Johnson presented the consent agenda items to the Board for action. This information is included
in the Board packet.

MOTION: By Director Sanchez to approve the Consent Agenda — General Business, Items (A-D), as
presented; Second by Director Johnson.

Moved/Seconded/ Carried. Ayes: Directors Johnson, Pack, Angelo, Gabriel, and Sanchez. Approved 5-
0 by roll call.

5. Receive Informational Reports
A. Chief Executive Officer

e Sutter
e Transaction Update
e Strategy Plan

Mary Casillas provided the CEO report, including an update on correspondence from Sutter Health. Mr.
Peil, of B. Riley and Mr. Miller of Hooper, Lundy, & Bookman, the District’s consultants, provided a
transaction update to the Board of Directors. Mr. Miller introduced special counsel Stephanie Gross and
Nina Marsden. Mr. Walling and Dr. Saeed, from Insight, shared a plan for the District.

An opportunity was provided for public comment and public comment was received.
B. Facilities Committee
1.  Review Facilities Updates — February 2025.
e Current Projects

e Pending Projects
e Master Plan

Mr. Robinson reviewed the Facilities report, which is included in the packet.
An opportunity was provided for public comment, and no public comment was received.

C. Finance Committee

— e Page



1. Review Financial Updates — January 2025
e Financial Statements
¢ Finance Dashboard
e Supplemental Payments

Mr. Robinson reviewed the financial statements, dashboard, and supplemental payments. The reports
are included in the Board packet.

An opportunity was provided for public comment, and no public comment was received.

6. Action Items
A. Consider Approval of Lease Amendment with Ceglia Properties, LLC for in the amount of
$10,348.85 per month for a one-year extension.

An opportunity was provided for public comment, and no public comment was received.

MOTION: By Director Angelo to approve the Lease Amendment with Ceglia Properties, LLC in the
amount of $10,348.85 per month for a one-year extension, Second by Director Pack.

Moved/Seconded/ Carried: Ayes: Directors Johnson, Pack, Angelo, Gabriel, and Sanchez. Approved 5-
0 by roll call.

B. Consider and Approve Proposal for Verkada Door Access Control in the amount of $250,004.80.
An opportunity was provided for public comment, and no public comment was received.

MOTION: By Director Gabriel to approve Proposal for Verkada Door Access Control in the amount of
$250,004.80, Second by Director Sanchez.

Moved/Seconded/ Carried: Ayes: Directors Johnson, Pack, Angelo, Gabriel, Sanchez. Approved 5-0 by
roll call.

C. Consider and Approve Proposal for Medi-Tech Expanse Software Upgrade in the amount of
$2,437,900.00.

An opportunity was provided for public comment, and public comment was received.

MOTION: By Director Pack to Approve Proposal for Medi-Tech Expanse Software Upgrade in the
amount of $2,437,900.00, Second by Director Angelo.

Moved/Seconded/ Carried: Ayes: Directors Johnson, Pack, Angelo, Gabriel, Sanchez. Approved 5-0 by
roll call.

D. Consider and Approve to Adopt Resolution No. 2025-02, Awarding Bid to Lowest Responsible
Bidder, The Core Group for the Chemistry Analyzer in the amount of $1,019,900.00.

An opportunity was provided for public comment, and public comment was received.
MOTION: By Director Sanchez to Approve and Adopt Resolution No. 2025-02, Awarding Bid to

Lowest Responsible Bidder, The Core Group for the Chemistry Analyzer in the amount of
$1,019,900.00., Second by Director Gabriel.

m



Moved/Seconded/ Carried: Ayes: Directors Johnson, Pack, Angelo, Gabriel, Sanchez. Approved 5-0 by
roll call.

E. Consider and Approve Print Services Agreement with Weizix in the amount of $16,926.00 per month.

An opportunity was provided for public comment, and no public comment was received.

MOTION: By Director Pack to Approve Print Services Agreement with Weizix in the amount of $16,926.00
per month, Second by Director Johnson.

Moved/Seconded/ Carried: Ayes: Directors Johnson, Pack, Angelo, Gabriel, Sanchez. Approved 5-0 by
roll call.

T

10.

Public Comment
An opportunity was provided for public comment, and no public comment was received.

Closed Session

President Johnson announced the items to be discussed in Closed Session as listed on the posted Agenda:
Conference with Legal Counsel-Existing Litigation Government Code §54965.9(d)(1) and
Hearing/Reports, Credentials, Evidence Code Sections 1156 and 1157.7; Health and Safety Code Section
32106(b).

The members of the Board entered into a closed session at 8:07 pm.

Reconvene Open Session/Closed Session Report
The Board of Directors reconvened to open session at 8:23 pm. Counsel stated that two (2) items were
discussed: 1) Conference with Legal Counsel-Existing Litigation and 2) Hearing/Reports.

No reportable action was taken regarding the conference with Legal Counsel-Existing Litigation. Under
hearings and reports, the Credentials report was received and approved by the Board, which voted
unanimously 5-0 to accept the Credentialing report.

Adjournment:
There being no further regular business or actions, the meeting was adjourned at 8:24 p.m.

The next Regular Meeting of the Board of Directors is scheduled for Thursday, March 27, 2025, at 5:00
p.m.



Y

Hazel Hawkins

MEMORIAL HOSPITAL

To: San Benito Health Care District Board of Directors

From: Amy Breen-Lema, Vice President, Clinic, Ambulatory & Physician Services
Date: March 11, 2024

Re: All Clinics — February 2025

February 2025 Rural Health and Specialty Clinic's visit volumes

| Total visits Total visits
Clinic Location current prior month
month  [{January 2025)
H -
Ort OF')edIC 337 349
Specialty
FMulti-Specialty 512 653
Sunset 653 616
Surgery & Primary 075 939
Care
'San Juan Bautista 199 248
1st Street 617 587
4th Street 984 1,160
Barragan 691 772
Total 4,268 4,617

The total number of patient visits across all clinic locations decreased slightly from
4,617 in January to 4,268 in February. This 7.6% decrease is primarily attributed to:

« A shorter month in February, resulting in fewer available clinic days.
« Provider vacations without gap coverage in certain clinics, leading to
temporary reductions in appointment availability.

Despite these factors, some clinics maintained stable visit numbers, and we
anticipate a return to typical volumes in the coming months as schedules normalize.

e Provider recruitment activities with anticipated start dates by specialty:
» Rheumatology: Dr. Lorilee Sutter — will be rejoining the clinics in April 2025

Page 5




> Endocrinology: Dr. Bilal Ahmed — Pending a start date in April 2025
» Family practice: Amy Chu, PA — April 2025

e Dr. James Lilja, a board-certified Gynecologist/Oncologist, started in our Primary
Care and Surgery Clinic on 2/13/2025. He has had a full schedule and has
already scheduled surgery cases.

¢ Dr. John Wiemann, a board-certified, locum tenens orthopedic surgeon, began
providing clinic and emergency call services in mid-February and made an
immediate impact by performing two major surgeries in his first 48 hours,
demonstrating his skill, adaptability, and efficiency. Patient, staff, and physician
feedback has been overwhelmingly positive.

e Stephanie Smith, a locum tenens primary care nurse practitioner, has started in
the clinics, assuming patients from our outgoing locums. She has been well
received by staff and patients and has already extended her assignment with
the clinics.

Page 6



il

Hazel Hawkins

MEMORIAL HOSPITAL
Mabie Southside/Northside Skilled Nursing Facility

Board Report — March 2025

To: San Benito Health Care District Board of Directors

From: Jaylee Davison, Interim Director of Nursing, Skilled Nursing Facility

1. Census Statistics: February 2025

- Southside 2025 _ ~ Northside 2025
Total Number of Admissions 15 Total Number of Admissions 5
Number of Transfers from HHH 11 Number of Transfers from HHH 4
Number of Transfers to HHH Number of Transfers to HHH 3
Number of Deaths 1 Number of Deaths 3
Number of Discharges 16 Number of Discharges 3
Total Discharges 17 Total Discharges 6
Total Census Days 1162 Total Census Days 1294

Note: Transfers are included in the number of admissions and discharges. Deaths are included in the number of discharges. Total

census excludes bed hold days.

2. Total Admissions: February 2025

Southside From Payor Northside From Payor
9 — HHMH _ Medicare 1 Westview Post Acute CCA
1 St. Louise Medicare 3 HHMH Re-Admit Medicare
1 Good Sam. Medicare 1 St.Louise Re-Admit Medicare
1 CHOMP Medicare
1 HHMH Hospice
1 HHMH Re-Admit Medicare
1 SVMH Re-Admit CCA
Total: 15 Total: 5
3. Total Discharges by Payor: February 2025
Southside 2025 Northside 2025
Medicare 12 Medicare 2
Medicare MC 0 Medicare MC 0
CCA 3 CCA 0
Medical 0 Medical 1
Medi-Cal MC 0 Medi-Cal MC 0
Hospice 2 Hospice 3
Private (self-pay) 0 Private (self ay) 0
Insurance 0 Insurance 0
Total: 17 Total: 6
4. Total Patient Days by Payor: February 2025
1

Page 7



SR Southside
Medicare
Medicare MC
CCA
Medical
Medi-Cal MC
Hospice
Private (self-pay)
Insurance

~Bed Hold / LOA

_Total:

Average Daily Census

2025 Northside i 2025
698 Medicare 63
0 Medicare MC 0
322 CCA 1023
0 Medical 162
0 Medi-Cal MC 0
114 Hospice 38
28 Private (self-pay) 0
0 Insurance 0
4 Bed Hold / LOA 8
1166 Total: 1294
41.64 Average Daily Census 46.21

Page 8



-

Hazel Hawkins

MEMORIAL HOSPITAL

To: San Benito Health Care District Board of Directors
From: Bernadette Enderez, Director of Diagnostic Services
Date: March 2025

Re: Laboratory and Diagnostic Imaging

Updates:

Laboratory

1. Quality Assurance/Performance Improvement Activities
- Update on chemistry analyzer project > Assay validation started 1/6/2025. Estimated completion date:
05/2025.
- Phase 2A construction update - Estimated start of construction: 4/2025
- Phase 3 and 4 workflow meetings ongoing

2. Laboratory Statistics

February 2025 2025 YTD
Total Outpatient Volume 4021 8565
Main Laboratory 1169 2506
Mc Cray Lab 805 1755
Sunnyslope Lab 383 795
SIB and 4% Street 78 160
ER and ASC 1586 3349
Total Inpatient Volume 173 346

Diagnostic Imaging
1. Service/Outreach
- Final stages on preparation for new service offering- low dose lung cancer screening

2. Quality Assurance/Performance Improvement Activities
- Preparation for multi-modality trailer pad proposal
- TIC tracers on different modalities

San Benito Health Care District
A Public Agency
911 Sunset Dtive, Hollister, CA 95023, (831) 637-5711, hazelhawkins.com

Page 9



ah

Hazel Hawkins

MEMORIAL HOSPITAL

3. Diagnostic Imaging Statistics

February 2025 2025 YTD
Radiology 1818 3700
Mammography 652 1340
CcT 887 1833
MRI 157 356
Echocardiography 102 212
Ultrasound 682 1482

San Benito Health Care District
A Public Agency
911 Sunset Drive, Hollister, CA 95023, (831) 637-5711, hazelhawkins.com

Page 10



Hazel Hawkins Hospital

FOUNDATION

Caring for Qur Community

TO: San Benito Health Care District Board of Directors
FROM: Liz Sparling, Foundation Director

DATE: March 2025

RE: Foundation Report

The Hazel Hawkins Hospital Foundation Board of Trustees met on March 13 and had two presentations. Dr. Michael
Bogey presented the need for a new ultrasound for the ER. Kyle Sharp with Edward Jones Investments presented
options for our CD which comes due at the end of March.

Financial Report February
1. Income $ 9,850.31
2. Expenses $ 0
3. New Donors 4
4. Total Donations 181
Allocations:

e $80,000 for a new Ultrasound for the Emergency Department from INVEST in the Future of San Benito
County Healthcare Campaign Funds

Directors Report:
e We will start gearing up for our All for 1 Employee Giving Campaign that will run the month of April. Letters

have been mailed to all HHMH Employees. Last year $57,714 was pledged and our goal is to exceed that this
year. Funds from the All for 1 Employee Giving Campaign were allocated to many different Hospital
Departments. Employee contributions do make a difference! All for 1 funds contributed to: Nurse’s station
and patient room chairs in the ER, provider chairs and facility improvements to the Barragan Diabetes Center,
chairs for patient’s in Med/Surg, upper body exerciser and treadmill for Physical Therapy, scholarships to
students in the medical field, endoscopy scope and cameras for the Ambulatory Surgery Center and Baby
Friendly program fees for the OB Department.

o Our accountant has all our tax information and they are being prepared.

e Have submitted our non-profit documents with the State for raffles and raffle reporting

o Dr. LaCorte put an order in for more blankets and items to make the “heartbeat in a bottle” for the End of Life
Services Program she is championing at HHMH. The program is very well received by patients, family
members, friends and HHMH staff.

e Our employees at HHMH are going through a workplace violence training. Learned how to get out of violent
situations that are occurring more often in healthcare settings.

Dinner Dance Report:
e Our event this year will be at Leal Vineyards on November 8, 2025. Save the Date!

Fundraising Committee:
e As of March 17, 2025, there have been 1740 total donations to our current campaign, “Invest in the Future of

San Benito County Healthcare, We Deserve It” totaling $1,151,250.32 plus the $100K pledge from the
Community Foundation.

Scholarship Committee:
e Our 2025 Foundation Scholarship Applications are posted on our website and available at the Hospital front
desk. They are for graduating seniors and students in higher education programs in the medical field.
Applications are due April 1st,

Page 11



Hazel Hawkins Board of Director’'s Report March 2025

MEMORIAL HOSPITAL Marketing/Public Relations

MARKETING

« Social Media Posts

We recently celebrated Health Care Human Resources Week. We love our HR staff along with the skills and iens
professionalism they bring to our organization. Thanks for all you do! o 0
Photo - Tue Mar 18

COMPREHENSIVE ORTHOPEDIC SERVICES IN HOLLISTER You don't have to leave town for Orthopedic Specialty

Services or Sports Injuries, our team at Hollister Orthopedic Specialty Center offers comprehensive orthopedic Vigws
services. Let your primary care provider know that you want to receive services locally, You can find a physician on ou... 1,046
Phota Tue, Mar 18

Join our community partners at San Benito Public Health for their Vaccine Clinic. This is an opportunity to get you and
your family up-to-date on your vaccines. Wednesday, March 12 3:00 - 5:00 pm Calaveras School

Wia
Vigws

3 Photc « Men Mar 10 353
STATEMENT REGARDING THWARTED RANSOMWARE HOAX Click here to view press statement:
https:};‘www‘hazelhawkins.cem}imagesfHHMH-Media-Slatement—HHM!—I-Thwarts-Ransomware-!-loax.pdf Hazel Viems
Hawkins Memorial Hospital {(HHMH) recently received correspondence implying that an outside organization had... 495

Link - Thu, Mar 6

Join our community partners at San Benito Public Health for their Vaccine Clinic. This is an opportunity to get you and Viens
your family up-to-date on your vaccines. Wednesday, March 12 3:00 - 5:00 pm Calaveras School ‘ 5:31
Phots + Wed, Mar 5

| Today we were pleased to collaborate with our First Responder partners to host Sunrise EMS SimLab from HCA
Healthcare's Sunrise Health all the way from Las Vegas, NV. The mobile classroom is equipped with the latest education  Vizws
technology including training mannequins that provide lifelike practice for real-time scenarios. Apollo, their adult ma.. 1,575

Bhoto - Mon, Mar 3

Join our community partners at San Benito Public Health for their Vaccine Clinic. This is an opportunity to get you and
your family up-to-date on your vaccines. Wednesday, March 12 3:00 - 5:00 pm Calaveras School
Phato « Tru, Feb 27

Vizws

750

We are pleased to be able to share this valuable information from a community partner for this new Stroke Survivor
support group. Their next meeting will take place on Tuesday, February 18 at 10:00 am. For more information please qall: Views
831-801-9095 or 831-524-2144. 601

Phota  Man, Feb 17

President's Day Holiday Hours Monday, February 17, 2025 The Emergency Department is ALWAYS Open 24/7 Main

Hospital Outpatient Lab & Radiology - 8 am - 2 pm - McCray Lab - Closed - Sunnyslope Lab - Closed - All Community  Vieas
Health Centers - Closed - Patient Payment Center - Closed For more information, please call (831) 637-5711 461
Photo - Mon, Feb 17

President's Day Holiday Hours Monday, February 17, 2025 The Emergency Department is ALWAYS Open 24/7 Main

Hospital Outpatient Lab & Radiology - 8 am - 2 pm - McCray Lab - Closed - Sunnyslope Lab - Closed - All Community ~ Views
Health Centers - Closed - Patient Payment Center - Closed For more information, please call (831) 637-5711 376
Photo » Sun, Feb 16

Reach

Raarh

521

Reach
203

Reach
277

Reach

309

3;3‘?

794

Reach
400

Reach

307

Rzach
279

Reach
229

Interactions

0

Interactions

%

Interactions

1

[rteractions

1

Interactions

5

[nteractions

33

Interactions

7

Interactions

7

Interactions

0

Interactians

0

Page 12



Hazel Hawkins Board of Director's Report March 2025- page 2
MEMORIAL HOSPITAL Marketing/Public Relations

EMPLOYEE ENGAGEMENT

Employees:

o Hazel's Headlines

e St. Patrick's Day Casual for a Cause
o Perfect Blend Coffee Cart

VOLUNTEER/AUXILIARY ENGAGEMENT

s Created Hazel's Thrift Shop page on HHH website
e Creating Auxiliary newsletter
s Promoting Auxiliary Scholarship applications

PHYSICIAN PROMOTION

» Creating Doctor's Day ad for the FreeLlance and Mission Village Voice

e Creating a video to celebrate Doctor’s Day
« Highlighting Orthopedic Surgeons on social media and with direct emails to physicians.

Public:
Working with Marcus Young from townKRYER PR agency on proactive PR.

¢« Press Releases:

« Media Statement—HHMH Thwarts Ransomware Hoax

COMMUNITY

« San Juan Bautista Clinic staff provided blood pressure checks for ribbon cutting event for SJB
Senior Center

Page 13



AV £0'8 S20Z/8T/€

(uoypo0] g espyd

gV Of poAOW 8q

Jim - @o0ds AupJodwiay
ul &A1 0B jou

| s,Un) "UOYDPIDA
Buiedwos wose}

gp1 ‘|[oAciddp uoHpo0|
|oul Joy painbal

SIOM DY} WSJSAS

Hids 8y} uo s1s%2ls
paunbal jpuolippL g
pPapPL OS|D PUD SISXDIS
dSO T 104 0 ubis
paje|dwoD JOI 8zZ/C

Jo40a.1q
ABojoipoy/qoT

zaispug
ajlopoulog

UbiH

asl

slazA|puy AjUlly | 850yd GO

Page 14

piiNgay qo1 110498y

81/E PoINPaySs
(102 oo 198f0id

10103811Q
Aopuwioyd

D|SADY USSADN

YBIH

a4l

reoz/vL/LL

uoypoyLB A BulpunodwoD Al

Jadoay Aopwinyd ad

|DACIAdD Duipusd
*2d02s pup YoM
ajis pa}s|dwoD Jounall

Jopoaag
Aopuoyd

DJSADY UD2ADN

wnipaw|

68¢

§eoz/éLl6

yeoc/viTl

SOUIYDODW SIXAd MBN

uolpfiosu| g

(I¥DH ©} uoIssilanss.
annbal pinod) *MOS Ul
abuby2 o} anp pappL

Jemod |pyusjod pup

pajind eg 0} 8|qo2 Jo}

SUOIDO| JO SBuIMbIp

|12}WoD Buipusad
‘¥ L/€ 10} P3INP8aYDS
Bullesw |DoIUYD3]

SOOIAISS
210D BJNDY
JO JO}D8l JoIUsS

ZopuDuIe, Jbf

ybiH

55915014
ul

adL

vzoe/TL Y

AJIND8S JUDJU|

SDIINDSS/SONH

‘uoionpoid

oJul paysnd aq

[IIM 8]l pUD UOHDOILISA
{IDWS YYM SISSN

10 uoypz|oul Bulpuad

$92IN050Y
ubWNH Joyoaiq

D|OHD) MBIQ

YBIH

661

geoe/1z/e

yeoz/elé

SMBIASY
22UDULIONSd 88A0|dw]

FleJtToJN

SOUDUD MO|IOM

JO UOJDDYIIOU UoIUN
JUSS YH "uolPINPd
1D}S SpIM asnoYy

UHm Alsnosupinuiis
plng o} st [poB

- Aomuspun Buiinpayos
JOOW ‘pajajduwod

{ 9soyd Buiuioly Jjois

S3DIAISS
2IDD 8NV
10 JO}o8lI Jojuas

Zepubule o[

MOT

vl

geoe/L/s

¥20e/9/2L

2IoMYOS BulNPays asINN

UO(DAOU|

3opdn

210y

Jopjoyapys Aa)| IVDH

Agoug

SNJDJS

uoyping

SAl] 0O

ajRq Pois

asoding

SWDN jo3f0id|

pipog Y2IoW - pipboqysp(q jo3foid



NV £0'8 ST0Z/8T/€

SWOoOol
859y} 8oUD|Dg O}
10JODIUOD gy b 8y O}
HWHH ‘4s8} 8dup|Dg 4B
2y} Jod 8poD jusund
Bunsaw jou aio by}
soonds 931y} 81D a19Y|

sooIAI88 Hoddng
1010841 JoIuss

sAow Bnog

ybiH

asl

¥zoz/8L/LL

[IDJSU] Wisiu| Adusbiawg

7-S (NHY) Hun JS|PUDH Jiy

SZ||oUY O}
JOLDDIIUOD YIIM MBIASI

JOI Butpued - 100dOY
paaoiddo [yOH

saoIAI8S Hoddng
Jojoa11q Joluss

sADW BnoQq

yBiH

asl

¥ZoT/oL/ L

Afligoley
¢ Aous|dlyy3 9oUbyul
o} Jojiog Buysixg 8op|day

Juswiaoniday Jajlog

BIVE]
PUD NS UHim pus [iim
pup Buip|iNg $82IAISS

poddns uo Bupiom
Ajpuaund ‘pays|dwod
u2aq soy |pjdsoy UIoW

yoa]
[ Jo Joyoaid

OpDoISW
UoOWwOo|0S

yBIH

b144

SzoT/oely

¥20oz/91/6

spoibdn
2INJONISDIU| SSO[DIM

apoBdN-IH-Mm

jSpowal
ay} jo ajonb |n) 10§
JB3AUS UlM PBINPaYDS
Buyssw [ouolippy

saoIAIRS |0216INS
Jo Joyoaug

DINJUBA
~19aNs IPUsW

yBiH

90¥

STOL/1E/TL

¥20Z/0Z/ L1

sjuswalnbay
AadHsO Jed ¥0 Buyobpdn

PINGSY JO Jo%AUS

Ajrooy ybBnoayy
oBoubs [puolppo dn
4nd [M "UCHODINPS JJD}S
2pNIDU |IM ‘PBINPBYDS
Buyssw BulayIow

se0lAIeS 2169)011S
2 UOIDWION| dA

SADW 81ZNg

MO

UOIDJUBWNJ0P
JTglet=Nello}

1ooloud 10§ BuisinN
UM JIOM [IIM OWd

‘| L/€ POUNDI0 BAI00)

LETINETY
2I0D 8jNdY
1O JooBuIq JoIuas

Zepupuisd oo

$2INSOBW ALIND3S

+ §592001d MO|PIOM JO
MBIABI [DUIB}UI BulADY
PUD SUOIIODSUD.)}
Buisa} aio sdays jxau
< WBJSAS 8y} 0} 188N JO
podwl pub UOIPPIDA
D{OP Upm padiay

SOy 1| ‘wWos} 8y} of
2|gISs9200 9PDUl PUD
PSAIDD31 USaQ SADY
S9SUSD|| 8210 3oDg

JeBoupw
Alpjelq paljipeD

Azoadoy poisser

wnipaw

it

78l

geoz/oely

¥20z/8z/01

UuoDBIADN
sndwo) ytoojen|g
Joy Allliqisseo0Y vavy

JosH jubry

/81

geoe/LL/e

¥eoe/s/é

SIETVETET
ajowal Binspaw/nol

Apnoiy

6EC

SToz/oely

yzoe/elé

SIDBW
10} Abd O} 8CIMS / SOd 940D

zodag

pipog YaIpWw - pipoqyspq joafoid

Page 15



WV £0'8 SZ0T/8T/E

ﬁvw__acwmhwwﬁ_mm__whw%nw sao|Aes Joddng __ OYASOY UIOW! SU} Ul DLIS12I0D
: : sApw Bno wnips adl szoz/6z/L| @yl Ag uoop sjgnop Jopluos| siooq ajgnog Bing pew
‘PaLOBIas DO ‘POAIBDA] Jojoaliq Jouas W a PSW 05401 511 BUSIXS UD 30DIdSY
jpsodoud Joupaiy
*QIDMJJOS OJU| UOHHISUDI} _m 1
pypp §| 96D)S IXaN
. saolAlas poddng a2 WIB|SAs Bulaxoll
UoJ8|0§ Of Papir0.d iojoauq Jouss Spellager WNIPSW __ asl §e0e/1/1 Bulssulbus jusLnD 9on|day uoisios
pUD P8}8||0D
usaq soy bjog __
‘paddiys usaq sy . R
juswdinb3 “psajajdwod
uaaq SDY $s8201d mau l a
oy} oy uolipjuswnoop| ANDeS g JWBW | %ﬂm@ﬁ. .
uoypyul 1osfoid puo| Bisws3 jo Jojdaig zaiwoy sbior YBIH _ 4l asl SZOZ/LL/€| $5902V 100Q + OSS / Aunoes DPONIOA.
19P|OYaDIS |pUIS)UL
18440 PBINPAYDS 8q |
0} |02 oo josfold
UolPpUSWWIODal =
: 103081Q z319pUuUj SHDJS ApDaYy S)OW
apiaoid o} Joupal| : wnipaw| PIOH UO asl a4l 6
\popILIANS [0s0doly ABo|oIpDY /gD ajjepouiag dW usym djay o} Joubal] pod Ja|Ipi] BuiBowi,
S[uswalinbal
: Joy081Q zaJ9pUuUj |opowal pup
mmaom_vmo,. Umm_waumcow ABOIOIPDY/ADT ayepouleg yBIH| PIOH UO a4l SToT/L/ 1L JuswdiNba JO JusUISSasSY ubjdiaisow ABO|OIPDY,
q O} DUSSW
101231Q Z519pu3
papiwqgns {psodoid ABO|OIPDY/ADT ajepouIsg MOT7| PIOH UO asl adl pajwans [psodold op.IBdN 1AW
DIWISIOS O} PBID|BI
paa|dwod oM SpIJOPUD}S
WwoJ} s|Iojap Joubal| mmMMMm_ tn‘_UM_MMw SADW BnoQg Ole% OSuiobup asl agl| Atesos g eoup|dwol) JIWsias DIWISISS
Buipuad *¢/g uo junib 1o8.1q Joluss IVDH 128w o} appiBdn
10§ IVDH uiim Buyesw
FeERR)
O} I81SI||OH 40 AlD woy)| saolaies poddng uolD||DIsUI g ssao0ud julad uopD||P}sY|
isenbal Jad sBumblp 1012211 Joluag show Bnog adl yeoe/ee/el sje|dwod o} Buussuibu] 5100( 9SS 40014 pug
Bulyopdn Joupsl]
UOIIONISUOD
Buipnys a1ojeq
JORJUOD 8Y} JO MBIASI loyoaug zaJopuU] o1/ N - SPOWSY QO
[oBe7 Buipuad ‘dnoio ABOIOIPDY/ADT aiepbuIeg 69 §e0T/S1/é ¥2oz/e/9 4 Ud :av14o 9P <} 1ep Y Qo7
FJOD 8y} O} Juss
JOUB| PIOMD |DIDIHO
‘pasoyoInd
HUN M3U BU SO [O4sul sooIAeS |DDIBING DINJUSA UoLD||DJsU|
1o} moj|p o4 josfoid GSS gToe/i/ Ll ¥Toc/sely juswdinbl Buiby ao0|day

a2y} 8doos-a1 0} Joupay|
WOl paAleosl [psodold

10 Joyoaug

-190nS IPUsW

DAD|D0JNY /192I|113}S

pipog YoIpW - pipoqyspq joafoid

Page 16



WY £0'8 SZ0Z/8T/E

%001 ve 1viol
%E | £ MOT
sisenbay o
abubyd %ST 9 wnipsw
%E9 Sl 4B
% INNOD ALNONRd
SW3Ll ONIAN3d % ALINONd 103rO¥d|
%001 (73 V101
%8 4 Buiebug
%1 €
%0 0
PSLIOIS ' %51 8l ! " _
_lou/mau 21q1ssQd L e
oAl 06 pauupid %l L DS JON
SAIFCRIRSIOIES % INNOD SNIVIS
% SNLVIS JSV1
S|pjol
*SUOIIDJS ||DD S8SINU ([
jo apoiBdn Joj ajonb S9OIABS
D Jayieb0o} 1nd ||Im oym alpD 8Ny ZapuDuUISH o0 ybiH adl ¥z02/01/6 aopn|dsay WIBYSAS (DD 8SINN
'JOPUSA O} Bplaoid O}| JO JoLO8Iq Jouas
Pa}99)100 Bulaq s| by |
I IFEMENE]
suoIs|oap | snopJozoy o Buleg o} snp
j0 8dA; Aup Bupipw| s821A198 poddng ; 1no pasoyd aq o} painbal
aloyaq |osodoid 10}0211Q JOUSS SiEiETed | geoe/vL/L usagq SPY PUD DILIOHID podiieH a3
SIOPUBA 8y} UO BUlIOM Ul pamo||p Jabuoj ou S|
PUD WaLSAS 444V UD SI WSJSAS

pipog Y2IbW - pipoqyspbq joofoid

Page 17



Memorandum

To: Board of Directors

From: Suzie Mays

Hazel Hawkins

MEMORIAL HOSPITAL

Vice President, Information & Strategic Services

Date: March 13, 2025

Re: Policies for Approval

Please find below a list of policies with summary of changes for Board of Directors approval. All
revised policies are available for review upon request. New policies are included in the packet.

Policy Title

Summary of Changes

Outbreak Investigation

Added regulatory reporting requirements for SNF
and GACH. Updated key terms in alignment with
APIC test on Outbreak Investigation.

Use of Portable Fans

Updated references and removed closing curtain
as option for use of a fan in rooms other than
single occupancy. Added requirement for
approval by Infection Prevention staff when
using portable fan outside of patient room.

Management SNF

Enhanced Barrier Precautions SNF New policy.
Infection Control and Prevention New policy.
Policy SNF

COVID-19 Prevention and New policy.

Page 18




Hazel Hawkins

MEMORIAL HOSPITAL

Enhanced Barrier Precautions (EBP)

Disclaimer

PDF DISCLAIMER LEGAL NOTICE: This PDF was requested on 3/14/2025 and will be made available in
the Lucidoc application until midnight on the requested day. PDFs should not be used as official
documentation. Contents of official documents are subject to change without notice. Lucidoc makes no
representation or warranty whatsoever regarding the completeness, accuracy, "up-to-dateness”, or
adequacy of the information or materials contained herein. Please refer to Lucidoc for the most up to date
information.

CONFIDENTIALITY LEGAL NOTICE: This PDF may contain confidential information and is intended
solely for the addressee. The information may also be legally privileged. This transmission is sent in trust,
for the sole purpose of delivery to the intended recipient. If you have received this transmission in error,
any use, reproduction, or dissemination of this transmission is strictly prohibited. If you are not the
intended recipient, please immediately notify the sender and permanently delete this file.

Approvals

« Committee Approval: Infection Control approved on 2/27/2025
« Committee Approval: Policy & Procedure Committee approved on 3/13/2025
« Signature: Shonna Avant signed on 2/14/2025, 7:30:14 PM

Revision Insight

Document ID: 12295

Revision Number: 0

Owner: Jaylee Davison,
Revision Official Date: No revision official date

Revision Note:
Revisions completed from Policy meeting. Ready for next step.

Page 1

Page 19



DoclD: 12295
Revision: 0

HOZS| HOWk'ﬂS Status: Pending Committee
MEMORIAL HOSPITAL ’ Approval
Department:SNF
Manual(s):

Policy : Enhanced Barrier Precautions (EBP)

PURPOSE

To prevent transmission of multidrug-resistant organisms (MDROs) and communicable
diseases through implementation of Enhanced Barrier Precautions while maintaining
resident quality of life in accordance with CDC, CMS, and CDPH Title 22 guidelines.

POLICY

Hazel Hawkins Memorial Hospital D/P SNF implements Enhanced Barrier Precautions
using a resident-centered approach that prioritizes both infection prevention and quality
of life. The facility's designated Infection Preventionist oversees this program in
collaboration with the interdisciplinary team.

DEFINITIONS
1. Enhanced Barrier Precautions (EBP): The use of gowns and gloves during high-
contact resident care activities for residents with specific risk factors.

2. High-Contact Resident Care Activities: Care tasks requiring physical contact with
the resident or their immediate environment, including:
o Personal hygiene

» Device care

o Wound care/Dressing changes

o Transfers involving close contact (including therapy)
o Linen changes

o Toileting assistance

3. Multidrug-Resistant Organisms (MDROs): Bacteria resistant to multiple antibiotics,

including but not limited to:
o Methicillin-resistant Staphylococcus aures (MRSA)

» Vancomycin-Resistant Enterococci (VRE)
» Extended-Spectrum Beta-Lactamase (ESBL)-producing organisms

» Carbapenem-Resistant Enterobacterales (CRE)

Page2 DocumentID 12295 Revision 0 Hazel Hawkins Memorial Hospital
Page 20



o Candida Auirs (C. Auris)
o Clostridium difficile (CDIFF)

PROCEDURE
A. EBP Implementation

1. Initiation Criteria
o Screen for MDRO(s) infection or colonization

» Presence of chronic open wounds (pressure injury, diabetic, unhealed
surgical)

o Indwelling devices (central lines, urinary catheters, feeding tubes)
» During outbreak investigation
o As directed by Infection Preventionist

2. Resident Placement and Activities
» Private rooms not required, cohort based on initial evaluation

o No restriction to group activities
» Ensure wound / device coverage during activities as appropriate
o Hand hygiene before leaving room

3. Required Practices and PPE
o Hand hygiene before and after resident contact

Gown and glove use during high-contact care

o

Proper PPE donning/doffing sequence

o

[e]

Environmental cleaning after care activities

-]

Regular disinfection of shared equipment
» Terminal cleaning upon discharge

4. Documentation Requirements
o Initial assessment

o Daily monitoring of conditions requiring EBP
o Weekly evaluations
o Discontinuation criteria met

5. Duration of Precautions
o Continue for duration of stay or until:
i. Wound healing is complete

ii. Indwelling device removed

Page3 DocumentID 12295 Revision 0 Hazel Hawkins Memorial Hospital

Page 21



iii. Infection Preventionist and interdisciplinary team document
resolution

B. Infection Prevention Program

1. Infection Preventionist Responsibilities
o Daily surveillance rounds

o Staff education
o Compliance monitoring
o Quality assurance activities

2. Staff Training
o Initial (upon hire) and ongoing training on EBP procedures

o Annual competency validation
o Just-in-time training
o Outbreak response training

» Visitor Education on hand hygiene and PPE

C. Quality Monitoring

1. Compliance Audits
» Hand hygiene observations

o PPE use monitoring
o Environmental cleaning checks
o Documentation reviews

2. Performance Improvement
o Monthly data analysis

o Action plan development
o Staff feedback
o Outcome tracking

D. Communication

1. Internal Reporting
o Shift-to-shift handoff

o Department notifications
o Committee updates
o Staff alerts

Page4 DocumentID 12295 Revision 0 Hazel Hawkins Memorial Hospital
Page 22



2. External Reporting

» San Benito County Health Department notifications & CDPH reporting as
required by law

o Family/resident communication

REFERENCES

1.

Centers for Disease Control (CDC) Implementation of Enhanced Barrier Precautions.
Enhanced Barrier Precautions in Skilled Nursing Facilities. Available

at www.cdc.gov/infection-control/media/pdfs/Webinar-EBPinNH-Nov2022-Slides-
508.pdf. Accessed February 3, 2025.

. Centers for Medicare & Medicaid Services (CMS) Requirements §483.80 Infection

Control. Title 42 / Chapter IV / Part 483 / Subpart B / §483.80. Available
at www.ecfr.gov/current/title-42/chapter-1V/subchapter-G/part-483/subpart-
B/section-483.80. Accessed February 3,2025.

. Callifornia Department of Health (CDPH) Title 22 (CCR )sections §72523,72321, and

72515. All Facility Letter (AFL) Title 42 Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) 483.80

. Centers for Medicare & Medicaid Services (CMS). Center for Clinical Standards and

Quality/Quality, Safety, & Oversight. Ref. QS0-24-08-NH from Director, Quality,
Safety & Oversight Group (QSOG). Enhanced Barrier Precautions in Nursing Homes.
Available at www.cms.gov/files/document/qso-24-08-nh.pdf Accessed February
3,2025.

AFFECTED SNF DEPARTMENTS

Page 5

1

. Nursing Services

2. Environmental Services

3. Rehabilitation Services

4. Dietary Services

5. Social Services
6. Medical Staff

7. Administration

8. Pharmacy

Document ID 12295 Revision 0 Hazel Hawkins Memorial Hospital

Page 23



Document ID 12295 Document Status Pending Committee Approval

Department SNF Department Director Davison, Jaylee
Document Owner - Davison, Jaylee Next Review Date
Attachments:

(REFERENCED BY THIS DOCUMENT)

Other Documents:
(WHICH REFERENCE THIS DOCUMENT)

Paper copies of this document may not be current and should not be relied on for official purposes. The current version
is in Lucidoc at

http://hzh-iis.hazelhawkins.com/?returnto=%2chi%2Fdoc-gw.p1%3Fref%3thmh%3A12295%240.

Page6 DocumentID 12295 Revision 0 Hazel Hawkins Memarial Hospital
Page 24



Hazel Hawkins

MEMORIAL HOSPITAL

Infection Control and Prevention Policy (SNF)

Disclaimer

PDF DISCLAIMER LEGAL NOTICE: This PDF was requested on 3/14/2025 and will be made available in
the Lucidoc application until midnight on the requested day. PDFs should not be used as official
documentation. Contents of official documents are subject to change without notice. Lucidoc makes no
representation or warranty whatsoever regarding the completeness, accuracy, "up-to-dateness”, or
adequacy of the information or materials contained herein. Please refer to Lucidoc for the most up to date
information.

CONFIDENTIALITY LEGAL NOTICE: This PDF may contain confidential information and is intended
solely for the addressee. The information may also be legally privileged. This transmission is sent in trust,
for the sole purpose of delivery to the intended recipient. If you have received this transmission in error,
any use, reproduction, or dissemination of this transmission is strictly prohibited. If you are not the
intended recipient, please immediately notify the sender and permanently delete this file.

Approvals

« Committee Approval: Policy & Procedure Committee approved on 3/13/2025
« Committee Approval: Infection Control approved on 2/27/2025
« Signature: Shonna Avant signed on 2/14/2025, 7:29:36 PM

Revision Insight

Document ID: 12294

Revision Number: 0

Owner: Jaylee Davison,
Revision Official Date: No revision official date

Revision Note:
New policy - corrections updated from policy meeting. Ready for next steps.

Page 1

Page 25



DocID: 12294
Revision: 0

HOZG| HGWk'ﬂS Status: Pending Committee
MEMORIAL HOSPITAL atus: Approval
Department:SNF
Manual(s):

Policy : Infection Control and Prevention Policy (SNF)

PURPOSE

To establish and maintain an effective infection prevention and control program that provides a
safe, sanitary, and comfortable environment to help prevent the development and transmission

of communicable diseases and infections.

POLICY

Hazel Hawkins Memorial Hospital d/p SNF shall implement comprehensive infection prevention
and control practices in accordance with professional standards and regulatory requirements to
prevent, identify, report, investigate, and control infections and communicable diseases for all
residents, staff, volunteers, visitors, and other individuals providing services within the facility.

DEFINITIONS
. Standard Precautions: Basic infection prevention practices that apply to all patient care,
regardless of suspected or confirmed infection status

. Transmission-Based Precautions: Additional precautions based on the suspected or
confirmed presence of an infectious agent

. Multi-Drug Resistant Organism (MDRO): Microorganisms resistant to multiple classes of
antimicrobial agents

. Personal Protective Equipment (PPE): Specialized clothing or equipment worn for
protection against infectious materials

. Surveillance: Systematic collection, analysis, and interpretation of health data

. Healthcare-Associated Infection (HAI): Infections that develop after admission (>72 hours),
not present or incubating at admission

. Outbreak: Occurrence of cases of disease in excess, per CDPH and CMS guidelines

PROCEDURE

A. Administrative Responsibilities

1. Infection Preventionist
- Designate a qualified Infection Preventionist (IP)

o IP must have completed specialized training in infection prevention and control
» Minimum of 40 hours per week dedicated to infection prevention activities

» Regular reporting to QAPI committee

Page2 DocumentID 12294 Revision 0 Hazel Hawkins Memorial Hospital

Page 26



Page 3

2. Program Management

» Develop and maintain written infection control policies

- Review and update policies annually and as needed

o Conduct regular risk assessments

o Maintain surveillance program

B. Prevention and Control
1. Standard Precautions

a. Hand Hygiene

» Follow CDC guidelines on hand hygiene:
- Hand washing is necessary in, but not limited to, the following

situations:
i
ii.
.

iv.

vi.

vii.

viii.

xi.

xii.

xifi.

Document ID 12294 Revision 0 Hazel Hawkins Memorial Hospital

Before and after having direct patient care.

Between direct patient care contacts with different
patients.

Before and after using the bathroom, blowing your nose,
covering a sneeze or cough, etc.

Before and after eating, serving, or preparing food.

. Before and after preparing and administering medications.

Before donning gloves and after removing gloves.

Before and after handling patient body fluids, excretions or
mucus membranes. i.e., urine, feces, sputum, blood.

Before and after handling invasive devices, i.e., peripheral
vascular catheters (IV catheters), Foley catheters or other
invasive devices that do not require a surgical procedure.

ix. Before and after performing wound care, dressing changes

or contact with any non-intact skin.

. Before and after contact with a patients intact skin (i.e.,

when taking a pulse, blood pressure, or lifting a patient.

When hands are visibly dirty, contaminated with organic
material or are visibly soiled with blood or other body
fluids, wash hands with either a non-antimicrobial soap and
water or an antimicrobial soap and water.

If hands are not visibly soiled, use an alcohol-based hand
rub for routinely decontaminating hands in all other clinical
situations (IA). Alternatively, wash hands with an
antimicrobial soap and water in all clinical situations.

Hands must be washed with soap and water:

Page 27



a. When caring for patients who have diarrhea
associated with Clostridium difficile, as the alcohol

based hand sanitizers are not effective to remove
spores.

b. Before the performance of invasive procedures or
the placement of intravascular catheters, indwelling
urinary catheters, or other invasive devices.

« Perform hand hygiene for minimum 20 seconds

2. Personal Protective Equipment
- Select appropriate PPE based on risk assessment:
« Gloves: For potential contact with blood/body fluids

« Gowns: For procedures likely to generate splashes
= Masks: For potential exposure to respiratory secretions
« Eye Protection: When splashes/sprays anticipated

- Don and doff PPE in correct sequence

- Dispose of PPE properly

3. Identification and Screening
» New and returning admissions are screened for infection(s) and/or colonization(s), and
H&P review

» Isolation and room placement based on residents screen and indivdual needs
» Resident infection line listing for tracking and trend identification
4. Transmission-Based Precautions

o Contact Precautions
« Implement for:
« Multi-Drug Resistant Organisms (MDROs)

= Clostridium difficile

« Draining wounds not contained by dressings
« Use dedicated equipment
« Enhanced environmental cleaning

5. Droplet Precautions
o Implement for:
= Influenza

« Pertussis
« Mumps
o Mask within 6 feet of resident
o Private room when possible
6. Airborne Precautions

Page4 DocumentID 12294 Revision 0 Hazel Hawkins Memorial Hospital

Page 28



o Implement for:
« Tuberculosis

« Measles
= Chickenpox
o Negative pressure room required

o N95 respirator or higher protection
C. Blood and Body Fluid Spill Management

1. Response Procedure
o Don appropriate PPE (gloves, gown, mask, eye protection)

o Contain spill using absorbent materials

- Remove visible organic matter with disposable towels

o

« Small spills: Standard disinfectant (1-minute contact)

« Large spills: 1:10 bleach solution (10-minute contact)

¥

-]

Clean from outer edges inward
Dispose of materials in biohazard containers

o

o Document incident in facility log

2. Spill Kit Requirements
» Maintain readily accessible spill kits in designated locations:
« Utility Room

« Crash Cart
« Treatment Cart

o Standard contents:
« Absorbent materials

= EPA-registered disinfectant
PPE (gloves, gowns, masks, eye protection)

Disposal bags

Instructions for use

o Monthly spill kit checks and restocking

D. Linen Management

1. Soiled Linen Handling
o Don appropriate PPE (gloves, gown if splashing likely)

» Hold away from body and uniform
o Do not shake or sort in resident areas
o Place directly in designated bags/containers:

Page5 DocumentID 12294 Revision 0 Hazel Hawkins Memorial Hospital

Apply EPA-registered disinfectant with appropriate contact time:

Page 29



= Regular soiled - clear bags
« Contaminated/isolation - blue bags
» Use fluid-resistant containers for wet linen
o Transport in covered carts
» Clean linen carts weekly and when visibly soiled

2. Linen Processing
» Handle all soiled linen as potentially infectious

Maintain separation of clean and soiled linen

o

o

Store clean linen:
« In clean, covered area

= 6 inches from floor
= 18 inches from ceiling

Handle isolation linen last

©

Clean and disinfect hampers daily

o

E. Surveillance and Reporting

1. Active Surveillance
o Monitor daily:
« New infections

= Temperature logs

= Antibiotic usage

« Laboratory reports

= Adherence monitoring
» Track infection trends using resident infection line listing
o Calculate infection rates

2. Mandatory Reporting
o Report to public health authorities:
« Reportable diseases

« Outbreaks
« Unusual occurrences
o Submit required reports within timeframes

F. Environmental Cleaning and Disinfection

1. Routine Cleaning
o Use EPA-registered disinfectants

o Follow manufacturer's instructions
o Clean high-touch surfaces multiple times daily

Page6 DocumentID 12294 Revision 0 Hazel Hawkins Memorial Hospital

Page 30



2. Terminal Cleaning
» Complete after discharge/transfer

o Clean all surfaces thoroughly

» Change privacy curtains

G. Employee Health

1. Health Screening
o Pre-employment screening

» Tuberculosis testing, Tri-Annual and status post exposure
o Immunization review and required titers
» Work restrictions when ill

2. Exposure Management
- Post-exposure protocols per employee health

o Documentation of event
o Follow-up procedures as indicated

H. Education and Training

1. Initial Training
o Standard precautions

» Transmission-based precautions
» Hand hygiene

o PPE use

o Reporting requirements

2. Ongoing Education
o Annual updates

o New hire orientation
o On the spot training
o Competency validation

REFERENCES

1. Centers for Medicare & Medicaid Services (CMS) 42 CFR §483.80: "Infection Control".
Available at https://www.ecfr.gov/current/title-42/chapter-1V/ subchapter-G/part-
483/subpart-B/section-483.80 Accessed February 3, 2025.

2. California Department of Public Health:
- Title 22, Division 5, Chapter 3, Article 3, §72321: "Infection Control". Available
at https://www.law.cornell.edu/regulations/california/22-CCR-72321 Accessed
February 3, 2025.

Page7 DocumentID 12294 Revision 0 Hazel Hawkins Memorial Hospital

Page 31



Page 8

o AFL 20-84: "Infection Control Recommendations”. Available
at https://www.cdph.ca.gov/Programs/CHCQ/LCP/Pages/AFL-20-84.aspx Accesssed

February 3, 2025.

o AFL 19-22: "Infection Prevention Program Requirements". Available
at https://www.cdph.ca.gov/Programs/CHCQ/ LCP/CDPH%20Document%20Library/AFL-
19-22.pdf Accessed February 3,2025.

3. Centers for Disease Control and Prevention:
- "Core Infection Prevention and Control Practices for Safe Healthcare Delivery in All
Settings". Available at https://www.cdc.gov/infection-control/hcp/core-
practices/index.html Accessed February 3,2025.

» "Guidelines for Environmental Infection Control in Health-Care Facilities". Available
at https:/ /www.cdc.gov/infection-control/media/pdfs/Guideline-Environmental-
H.pdf Accessed February 3,2025.

» "Guideline for Isolation Precautions: Preventing Transmission of Infectious Agents".
Available at https://www.cdc.gov/infection-control/media/pdfs/Guideline-Isolation-

H.pdf Accessed February 3, 2025.

4. OSHA:
« 29 CFR §1910.1030: "Bloodborne Pathogens Standard". Available

at https://www.osha.gov/laws-
regs/regulations/standardnumber/1910/1910.1030 Accessed February 3, 2025.

o 29 CFR §1910.134: "Respiratory Protection". Available at https://www.osha.gov/laws-
regs/regulations/standardnumber/1910/1910.134 Accessed February 3, 2025.

5. APIC Implementation Guides Available at https://apic.org/Professional-
Practice/lmplementation-guides/Accessed February 3, 2025.

6. CDC Guidelines for Healthcare Personnel Infection Prevention Recommendations. Available
at https:/ /www.cdc.gov/infection-control/media/pdfs/Guideline-Infection-Control-HCP-
Recommendations-Only-H.pdf Accessed February 3,2025.

7. AFFECTED SNF DEPARTMENTS

. Administration

. Nursing Services

. Environmental Services

. Dietary Services

. Rehabilitation Services

. Activities Department

. Social Services

. Medical Staff

. All other departments and personnel providing services within the facility

Document ID 12294 Revision 0 Hazel Hawkins Memorial Hospital

Page 32



Document ID 12294 Document Status Pending Committee Approval

Department SNF Department Director  Davison, Jaylee
Document Owner Davison, Jaylee Next Review Date 02/05/2026
Attachments:

(REFERENCED BY THIS DOCUMENT)

Other Documents:
(WHICH REFERENCE THIS DOCUMENT)

Paper copies of this document may not be current and should not be relied on for official purposes. The current version is in Lucidoc
at

http://hzh-iis.hazelhawkins.com/?retumto=%2chi%2Fdoc-gw.pl%3Fref%3thmh%3A 12294%240.

Page9 DocumentID 12294 Revision 0 Hazel Hawkins Memorial Hospital

Page 33



Hazel Hawkins

MEMORIAL HOSPITAL

COVID-19 Prevention and Management (SNF)

Disclaimer

PDF DISCLAIMER LEGAL NOTICE: This PDF was requested on 3/14/2025 and will be made available in
the Lucidoc application until midnight on the requested day. PDFs should not be used as official
documentation. Contents of official documents are subject to change without notice. Lucidoc makes no
representation or warranty whatsoever regarding the completeness, accuracy, "up-to-dateness", or
adequacy of the information or materials contained herein. Please refer to Lucidoc for the most up to date
information.

CONFIDENTIALITY LEGAL NOTICE: This PDF may contain confidential information and is intended
solely for the addressee. The information may also be legally privileged. This transmission is sent in trust,
for the sole purpose of delivery to the intended recipient. If you have received this transmission in error,
any use, reproduction, or dissemination of this transmission is strictly prohibited. If you are not the
intended recipient, please immediately notify the sender and permanently delete this file.

Approvals

« Committee Approval: Infection Control approved on 3/4/2025
« Committee Approval: Policy & Procedure Committee approved on 3/13/2025
« Signature: Shonna Avant signed on 2/14/2025, 7:29:51 PM

Revision Insight

Document ID: 12276

Revision Number: 0

Owner: Jaylee Davison,
Revision Official Date: No revision official date

Revision Note:
New Policy - revisions completed from policy meeting. Ready for next step.

Page 1

Page 34



DoclD: 12276
Revision: 0

HGZS| HOWkIﬂS Status: Pending Committee
MEMORIAL HOSPITAL : Approval
Department:SNF
Manual(s):

Policy : COVID-19 Prevention and Management (SNF)

PURPOSE

To establish evidence-based protocols for the prevention, early detection, containment,
and management of COVID-19 in the skilled nursing facility to protect residents, staff,
and visitors while ensuring compliance with regulatory requirements.

POLICY

Hazel Hawkins Memorial Hospital d/p SNF shall implement comprehensive measures
to prevent and manage COVID-19 transmission within the facility, following current
guidelines from CMS, CDC, CDPH, and San Benito County Health Department. This
policy ensures a safe environment while maintaining quality care for residents.

DEFINITIONS

. COVID-19: Disease caused by the SARS-CoV-2 virus
. PPE: Personal Protective Equipment

. Transmission-Based Precautions: Measures taken in addition to standard
precautions for patients with known or suspected infectious conditions

. Close Contact: Being within 6 feet of an infected person for a cumulative total of 15
minutes or more over a 24-hour period

. Outbreak: One or more facility-acquired COVID-19 cases in residents or staff

. Up-to-date Vaccination: Having received all recommended COVID-19 vaccines,
including boosters when eligible

PROCEDURE
A. Surveillance Screening & Monitoring During Outbreak

1. Entry Screening
o Screen all persons entering the facility for:

« Temperature checks (=100.0°F)
= COVID-19 symptoms

Page2 DocumentID 12276 Revision 0 Hazel Hawkins Memorial Hospital

Page 35



= Recent exposure to COVID-19
« Travel history as relevant

« COVID-19 Signs and Symptoms Signage Posted at high traffic areas,
recommending no visits if symptoms present

» Maintain screening logs for at least 12 months

2. Resident Monitoring
» Conduct daily symptom screening and temperature checks

o Document findings in medical record
o Immediately isolate and test symptomatic residents

B. Testing Protocols

1. Routine Testing
» Upon Admission (day 1, day 3, and day 5)

o Any staff or resident with signs or symptoms
o Document all test results
» Follow current CDC and CDPH guidelines for testing and reporting

2. Response Testing
- Test all symptomatic residents and staff upon identification of a positive case

o Conduct contact tracing
» Implement serial testing as required by public health

C. Infection Prevention Measures

1. Personal Protective Equipment
o Ensure adequate PPE supply

» Required PPE based on transmission risk:
= N95 respirators for confirmed/suspected cases

« Surgical masks for routine care
= Eye protection as indicated
» Conduct regular PPE competency training

2. Environmental Cleaning
o Use EPA-registered disinfectants

» Increase cleaning frequency of high-touch surfaces

o Terminal cleaning for COVID-19 rooms

D. Visitation

Page3 Document|D 12276 Revision 0 Hazel Hawkins Memorial Hospital

Page 36



1. Follow current CMS and CDPH guidelines for:
o Indoor/outdoor visitation

o Compassionate care visits

o Essential caregivers

o Offer alternative methods of visiting
2. Maintain visitor logs for contact tracing

3. Educate visitors on infection prevention

E. Outbreak Management

1. Immediate Actions
» Implement outbreak testing protocol per San Benito Public Health

» Implement outbreak line listing for reporting and tracking

- Notify local health department and CDPH within 24 hours of outbreak status
o Enhance monitoring and restrictions

o Increase environmental cleaning

2. Communication
o Notify residents, families, and staff

o Provide regular updates
o Document all communications

» Updating and notifing local health department and CDPH until outbreak
cleared

F. Vaccination

1. Maintain current records of resident and staff vaccination status
2. Offer COVID-19 vaccines to residents and staff

3. Educate about vaccine benefits and safety

4. Document vaccine administration and declinations

G. Education and Training

1. Provide regular updates on:
o COVID-19 prevention

o PPE use
o Hand hygiene
> Current COVID-19 guidelines

Page4 DocumentID 12276 Revision 0 Hazel Hawkins Memorial Hospital
Page 37



2. Document all training sessions

H. Documentation Requirements

1. Maintain records of:
o Screening logs

o Testing results

o Vaccination status

o Training attendance

o QOutbreak response measures

2. Ensure accessibility for survey teams

REFERENCES

. Centers for Medicare & Medicaid Services (CMS) QSO Memos. Ref: QS0O-20-39-NH
Revised 05/08/2023. Available at https: //www.cms.gov/files/document/qso-20-39-
nh-revised.pdf Accessed February 3,2025.

. Centers for Medicare & Medicaid Services (CMS) QSO Memos. Ref: QSO-25-11-NH.
Available at https://www.cms.gov/files/document/qso-25-11-nh.pdf Accessed
February 3, 2025.

. California Department of Health (CDPH). Title 42 / Chapter IV / § 483.80 Infection
Control. Available at https://www.ecfr.gov/current/title-42/chapter-
IV/subchapter-G/part-483/subpart-B/section-483.80 Accessed February 3, 2025.

. CDPH All Facilities Letters (AFLs): AFL 23-12 Coronavirus Disease 2019 (COVID-19)
Recommendations for PPE, Resident Placement/Movement, and Staffing in Skilled

Nursing Facilities. Available
at https://www.cdph.ca.gov/Programs/CHCQ/LCP/Pages/AFL-23-12.aspx Accessed

February 3, 2025.

. CDC Guidelines for Healthcare Facilities and Infecton Control Guidance: SARS-CoV-
2. Available at https://www.cdc.gov/covid/hcp/infection-
control/index.html Accessed February 3,2025.

. San Benito County Health Department Guidelines. Available
at https://hhsa.cosb.us/communicable-diseases/ Accessed February 3,2025.

AFFECTED SNF DEPARTMENTS

- Nursing Services
. Environmental Services

Page5 DocumentlID 12276 Revision 0 Hazel Hawkins Memorial Hospital

Page 38



. Dietary Services

. Rehabilitation Services

. Social Services

. Activities

« Administration

. Medical Staff

. All other departments and personnel entering the facility

Note: This policy shall be reviewed annually and updated as needed based on current regulatory requirements and
evidence-based practices.

Page6 DocumentID 12276 Revision 0 Hazel Hawkins Memorial Hospital

Page 39



Document ID 12276 Document Status Pending Committee Approval

Department SNF Department Director Davison, Jaylee
Document Owner Davison, Jaylee Next Review Date 02/05/2026
Attachments:

(REFERENCED BY THIS DOCUMENT)

Other Documents:
(WHICH REFERENCE THIS DOCUMENT)

Paper copies of this document may not be current and should not be relied on for official purposes. The current version
is in Lucidoc at

http://hzh-iis.hazelhawkins.com/?returnto=%2F cgi%2Fdoc-gw.pl%3Fref%3Dhhmh%3A12276%240.

Page7 DocumentID 12276 Revision 0 Hazel Hawkins Memorial Hospital
Page 40



3/20/25, 11:29 AM Ransom demand at California hospital turns out to be a hoax - Becker's Hospital Review | Healthcare News & Analysis

Cybersecurity

Ransom demand at California hospital
turns out to be a hoax

BECKER'S

HEALTH IT

Subscribe

) By: Naomi Diaz 2 days ago Share

Hollister, Calif-based Hazel Hawkins Memorial Hospital was targeted by a social
engineering hoax.

Hazel Hawkins Memorial Hospital received information that an outside organization
had gained access to its information systems and was demanding a ransom to avoid
leaking protected health information, according to a March 6 breach notification
from the hospital.

After working with local, state and federal law enforcement agencies as well as a
hospital cybersecurity partner, Hazel Hawkins Memorial Hospital determined that
the emailed ransom notes were part of a social engineering hoax and that there
was no evidence of a ransomware attack.

There was also no evidence that the hospital’s information systems were
compromised.

Page 41 1

https:.-‘iwww‘beckershospitalreviaw.c:omlcybersecuritw'ransom-demand-at-califomia-hospital-tums-out-to-be—a«hoax!



3/20/25, 11:28 AM Ransom demand at California hospital turns out to be a hoax - Becker's Hospital Review | Healthcare News & Analysis
The incident comes after the American Hospital Association and the FBI received

multiple reports of hospitals and health systems receiving data extortion letters
sent through the U.S. Postal Service and originating domestically.

More In:
Becker’s Hospital Review

Hospitals among victims of alleged ransomware developer extradited to US
38 passwords that take 1 second to crack

Yale New Haven Health confronts ‘cybersecurity incident’

Advertisement

Next Up in Cybersecurity

Cybersecurity
Cyberattacks spark credit downgrades at 2 systems

Cyberattacks can cripple hospitals of any size, but they’re particularly damaging to
smaller hospitals with fewer resources to recover, according...

) By: Laura Dyrda 4 hours ago

Cybersecurity
Hackers use ChatGPT to target healthcare

Health systems should be on the lookout for a ChatGPT vulnerability hackers are using
to target industries including healthcare, the...

) By: Giles Bruce yesterday

Page 42 o

https://www.beckershospitalreview.com/cybersecun'ty/ransom-demand-at-california-hospital-turns-out-to-be-a-hoax/



HUMAN RESOURCES DASHBOARD 2025

DEPARTMENTAL METRICS January February YTD(Jan)
# Employees 704 705 705
# New Hires 13 5 18
# Terminations 9 6 15
Overall Turnover 1.3% 0.9% 2.13%
Nursing Turnover 0.73% 1.45% 2.18%
Terms By Union January February YTD(Jan)
The California Nurses Association (CNA)
1 2 3
National Union of Healthcare Workers {(NUHW)
5 3 8
California License Vocational Nurses (CLVN)
0 0 0
Engineers and Scientists of California (ESC)
0 0 0
Non-Union
3 1 4
Terms By Reason (V=Voluntary & IV= Involuntary) January February YTD(Jan)
Personal (V) 3 2 5
New Opportunity(V) 2 2 q
Retirement (V) 0 1 1
Schedule (V) 0 0 0
Job Abandonment (V) 0 0 0
No Reason Given (V) 0 0 0
Relocating (V) 0 1 1
School (V) 0 0 0
No Show (V) 0 0 0
RIF(IV) 0 0 0
Performance (IV) 4 0 4

Page 43



Chief Nursing Officer Report
March 2025
Patient Care Services
e Hicuity went live March 11th
Quality, Regulatory, and Infection Prevention

e (Quality and Risk Director
e Influenza and other respiratory illnesses have stabilized at this time

CNO Dashboard February 2025

February 2025 February |Budget- Year Actual -YTD

Description Budget 2025 Actual |[To Date Total Total
ED Visits 2,133 2309 17,637 18,504
|ED Admission % 10%> 10%>

'LWBS % <2.0%  11% <2.0%

'Door to Provider 10 min | _ S!mint 10 min

MS admissions 105 R | 815

ICU admissions 24 B s e 120

Deliveries 34 - 257

'OR Inpatient 40 40 269
|ASC/0P cases 56 55 376
GI 86 106 726

Met or Exceeded Target

Within 10% of Target

Page 44



iy

Hazel Hawkins

MEMORIAL HOSPITAL

REGULAR MEETING OF THE FINANCE COMMITTEE
SAN BENITO HEALTH CARE DISTRICT
911 SUNSET DRIVE, HOLLISTER, CALIFORNIA
MONDAY, MARCH 24, 2025 - 4:30 P.M.
SUPPORT SERVICES BUILDING, 2"? FLOOR - GREAT ROOM

San Benito Health Care District is a public agency that serves as a responsive, comprehensive health care
resource for its patients, physicians and the community.

1. Call to Order

2. Review Financial Updates
e Financial Statements — February 2025
e Finance Dashboard — February 2025
e Supplemental Payments — February 2025

3. Consider Recommendation for Board Approval of Professional Services Agreement with Lorilee Sutter,
M.D.
e Report
e Committee Questions
e Motion/Second

4. Public Comment
This opportunity is provided for members of the public to make a brief statement, not to exceed
three (3) minutes, on matters within the jurisdiction of this District Board Committee, which are
not on this agenda.

5. Adjournment

The next Finance Committee meeting is scheduled for Monday, April 21, 2025 at 4:30 p.m.

The complete Finance Committee packet including subsequently distributed materials and presentations is
available at the Finance Committee meeting and in the Administrative Offices of the District. All items appearing

Page 45



Y

Hazel Hawkins

MEMORIAL HOSPITAL

on the agenda are subject to action by the Finance Committee. Staff and Committee recommendations are subject
to change by the Finance Committee.

Notes: Requests for a disability-related modification or accommodation, including auxiliary aids or services, to
attend or participate in a meeting should be made to District Administration during regular business hours at 831-
636-2673. Notification received 48 hours before the meeting will enable the District to make reasonable
accommodations.

Page 46



San Benito Health Care District

] -
r' HOZ@I A Public Agency
H(]Wk[ns 911 Sunset Drive
MEMORIAL HOSPITAL Hollister, CA 95023-5695
SKILLED NURSING FACILITIES (831) 637-6711
HOME HEALTH AGENCY

San Benito Health Care District

March 24, 2025

CFO Financial Summary for the District Board:

For the month ending February 28, 2025, the District’s Net Surplus (Loss) is $3,912,058 compared to a
budgeted Surplus (Loss) of $1,181,338. The District exceeded its budget for the month by $2,730,720.

YTD as of February 28, 2025, the District’s Net Surplus (Loss) is $15,358,843 compared to a budgeted
Surplus (Loss) of $4,870,031. The District is exceeding its budget YTD by $10,488,812.

Acute discharges were 156 for the month, slightly under budget by 3 discharges or 2%. The ADC was
16.39 compared to a budget of 17.28. The ALOS was 2.94. The acute I/P gross revenue was under
budget by $301,228 (4%) while O/P services gross revenue exceeded budget slightly by $389,3410r 1%
over budget. ER I/P visits were 138 and ER O/P visits were over budget by 175 visits or 9%. The
RHCs & Specialty Clinics treated 3,419 (includes 691 visits at the Diabetes Clinic) and 849 visits
respectively.

Adding to the District’s recorded earnings this month are the following supplemental revenue programs:

1) $1,311,259.68 final settlement for QIP PY6 CY2023.
2) $710,852.61 District Hospital Direct Payment (DHDP) for June 1% — June 30, 2023.
3) $459,882 final accrual of CY 2023 Rate Range settlement of $1,339,140.97.

Other Operating revenue exceeded budget by $2,047,640 due to the aforementioned items 1 & 2.

Operating Expenses were over budget by $338,150 due mainly to: Registry of $260,257 (partially
offset by savings in Salaries & Wages of $135,993 and Benefits of $80,150), Supplies of $86,429 and
Purchase Services of $267,048. These overages are partly attributable to an increase in orthopedic
surgeries (implants) and other medical supplies. In addition, an increase for the month in repairs and

maintenance.
Non-operating Revenue exceeded budget by $767.

The SNFs ADC was 87.61 for the month. The Net Surplus (Loss) is $83,794 compared to a budget of
$73,364. YTD, the Net Surplus (Loss) is $1,028,792 exceeding its budget by $318,755.

We bring you... Health, Compassion & Innovation

Page 47



65€'€LT'9

81s

890°00% 0T L%2'600'C STE'60%'TT 89 'LE6 LZE £€s6’'62TL'T ovez'9es €6T'995'¢E (SSOT) TWODNI ONILVIAAO0 LAN
£v8'1E6 ‘€6 € ¥5C'08%'C L80'98¢°'86 TEE'998'00T LLS'66LTT € €57 '¥S¢E €05 '€29'TT 956 'LL6'TT SEASNIAXT TYIOL
6E9'6TV'E € zT9'1e LIL'LO% '€ 6EE'6SS L LB9 €97 9 068'€C £50°'20% 373144 ATHLO
8LL'SEY PE oLz'sL 196 ‘€22 TET 662 680°0€ (08) (¢e1'z2) vzg'Le z€9's ISTAALNT
LE8'665'T 0 (s8z'0T) 918 'L%¥S5'C ZES'LES'T 968 '02¢ 4} (8€5) LLE'BTE ~. 0%6'LIE IHOWY ¥ NOLLVIDHAJAA
S¥8°'860°T 6 LOT'60T PSTLLLT T9€°98C T zZee'zevt Lz £L6'9€ S§69°SET 829'¢CLT TYLNEA
TIT'9LS'8 8T 690'929'T §5T'LZ0'6 YZE'€59°0T 90¢g’'esT'T 8z 526 '68C SBT'0%0°'T OTT'0EE'T SEIIAYES AISYHOANG
SzE'€TY '8 1T 665198 6BT €56 'L ¥8L'028°'8 €%%'890°T 8 9LL VL STL'T00°T T6%'9L0’T $411ddNS
9%6'266 'CT (%) (96%'657%) 8LT '€86'TT zzB'Ezs'et 0zs’'zes’'t (2) (€0T'LZ) §5£'96%'T zSC'69¥%°'T sadd TYNOISSHIOUd
186 °86% ‘9T (9) (920 '090 'T) €80 °TEE ‘9T LSO'TYE LT S88'61Z'2C (9) (€88 °92T) ZeT'T16T’CT 6¥Z'%¥90°2Z SIIJAENAE HTAOTAWH
0€£9'STS'Z 24 €r€'zLe'e 006°€€8°'T €TZ'90T'¥ T%2'09% 114 60Z'%LT 166 '92¢ 09T'T0S A4LSIDAY
TSL'0LE'LE (£) (596 ‘150" 1) $E9'06L 0% 699°8EL 6L 6L9'81%'V (v) (€09 '89T) 95T'€9L 'Y €SS'YI9'¥ SEOVYM I STIUVIYS
:SESNIAXE ONIIVIFIAO
202502001 €1 Z1€'088°2T vEE'S6€ 00T 9¥9SLZETT 092'LEL’TT sz 90v ‘%80 '€ £vL'65% 2T 6T ¥9S'ST AONIATI DNILWYEIO LAN
z88 €6t ¥ TL B0E'8BYT '€ 9v0 ‘€8¢ ' % 9SE’'TES 'L 0€Z'L9V 7LE 0¥9L¥0’2 188 °L¥S 125°565'2 AONAATY ONIIVIEAO AAHLO
0ZE'TIL'G6 ot v00'ZEL’6 98Z 'TT0°'96 06Z'%5L°SOT 0€0'0L2°TT 6 99L'980'T 298 'TT6 ‘1T 829°'8v6°CT HONIATY JINIIIVd LIAN
60€'LOTLE6T € Y6V 'TLB Y 6€9°%96 'L6T €E€T’LEY TOT ZL6 ‘€T Ve (%) (L¥E'€98) TBL 9L VT YEV'IPE €T HANFATY WO¥d SNOILONAHA TYLOL
YIE' %S 0 0 0 0 LET'9 0 0 0 0 MOTTY TYALDVAINOD SAZA\LSITYLIASOH
865°'062'S¢E 9 S566'szT'e 6TS'TLS 'BE Y15'869'9¢ T8%'99T'% (8) (19%'09¢) 998 '60€E'¥Y S0%'696 '€ SINFWLSNCAY ANY STYNLOVILNOD ¥IHLO
LYY 0EE (¥) (vzT'2T) ze1'T1e 890'00€ 6ST'6T z€e 9L9 06 yE0 ‘6t 0TL 62T VD ALIVVHD
€57 '859'S St 926 '99%'T 826 'LIT ¥ ¥58°299°'S 962'980°T (6T) (6%9°L6) 0€9°’€2S 186°'SCH ASNEdXd 1930 ave
6ST'08L'LL 0 (9€0°IST) G%0 ‘986 'BL 600 '€€8'8L 60T'68%'6 (L) ($96°STL) G9£'298°6 T08°'9%T'6 SEONYMOTTY TYALOVIINOD TYO-IQEW
6%€ ‘€62 8L 4 BEL'BEV'T S56°L06'6L 689°'25€'18 T6L'LSE'6 z TS9'66T 988’6866 LES'68T 0T SEONYMOTTY TYALIVILNOD TIVDOIAIW
FENNIARE WO¥d SNOLIONAIa
629'8TT €62 S 865 %09 %L 526 '9L6 '€62 €Z% ‘185 °BOE Z00'%6¥%‘9€ '] 6T% EST €99 '9€9°9¢ T90'06L ‘9€ HANIATY INJIIWd SSO¥D TYIOL
EE0'¥9T'912 S SLY'8¥9°TT 06€'€L6 '6TZ $98°'1Z9 12 €92'%28°92 1 TvE'69¢€ 1TC'682°LT ess'sLy’Le HNNIATY INFIIVALNO SSO¥O TYIOL
8t8'€0S 0 0 0 0 9vT 0L 0 0 0 0 ANNIASY d\O SAFJ\LSITILIdSOH
S6T’'099'STe S SLE'8¥9'TT 06€'€L6'6TT 598’129 ‘1€ LIT'¥SL'9T T TvE'68€ 1TZ’682'LT zss’BL9 ‘LT ANNFATY INIIIVALOO XAVTTIIONY
965'%56 9L v €20'956°'2 SES‘'€00 7L 855°656°9¢L 6€L'699'6 (€) (226 'SET) TEV'LYE’S 0TS’TTT'6 ANNTAZY INITLYANI SSONOD TYIOL
090’'T0E'T 0 0 0 0 L96'06T 0 0 0 0 FNNIATY d\I SAdd\ILSITYLIdSOH
06T'TST'2E L 00%v ‘€222 869'Z¥%T CE 860°'99% ' ¥E 6T8'GSE’Y (T) (0L6'19) G80'TTE Y STL'6¥%2'¥ ANNIATY INAIIYANI A¥VITIONY
88T '€TZ'LT 5 6%0'60¢€ TLY'TLE'ST 0zL'08L'ST 0ZL'LTE'T T L6T'ST ETT'TER'T 0T¥'9%8°T IONIATY ENILOOY JINS
65T'682'92 z vLS'ETY 99168292 0bL‘ZTIL 92 €€2°602'€ (9) (6%Z'68T) $E€Z'502"E S86'ST0'€ INNFAFY ANILOCY HLOOY
fANNIATY INITLYd SSOUD
vz/62/20 SDNVINVA FEINYIAYA szT/82/20 sz/82/20 ¥z/6Z/20 TONYINVA HONWINVA sz/8z/zo0 sz/82/20
¥A ¥OTAd LNED¥AS 5EN/80d Iadbang TYOIOY X FOT¥E INED¥AE 9aN/S0a LEDang TYOLOY
R RRnEEEEEEEEEEE “mo - em - —EINQ-OL-YWHEK - === ==~ = -m s mmmmmmmmem--o--ooe | e smssssss-sssscssc-c<--HLNOW INAMMOD--------- —m———-- mmmmmmmneas
§Z/82Z/T0 QOI¥Ed 404
€2056 YO ‘¥ELSITION
@ENTEW0D - TVLIJSOR TYINONAW SNINMVH TIZVR

T 39%d

WIANYIIAS ‘X950
1S0T ® SZ/91/€0 :33ed

Page 48



318°9 $TS 6LT TL78 358" ¥ %957 €T 32876 $Y%°S9T $69°ST 38%°6 %L1 ST NIDYYW (SSOT) SNTdUNS LAN
%9279 38E° LYY %56°8 300°2 356°0T 39€°L 2€8°T%2 3€2°9T $TL™9 $¥6°2¢ NIDYYW ONILYIEdO
358°0T $5T° 92T 36%°8 $EL79 5TT°ST 36L°TT 329 PET $TE°ST SLETTT %$89°92 NIDYYW vaIgs
zz0'%L8'0T § BLT SST SSE'6LY'OT &  €0E'ESL'9 $  BS9'ZET'LT §  6TT'20S'T & 0L Z6T POT'0EL’Z §  LPL'9TH'T §&  TE€6'9%T'? § wvareg
s=ss=zzzsans mEssssmsssss  ssss=sssss=s  sSsssasasssss SOSSSSEISUSS O SSSSSSSSSS  Sssoosssssss  Ssssses SnmaESaREN
6%9'¥28'8 z18'88% ‘0T TE0‘0LB Y €¥8'8BSE'ST 06T'0ST'T €2 ozL'0EL'T 8E€'I8T'T 8S0'¢I6'¢€ (S50} SNT4UNS IAN
062'1S5'2 € €%L°88 ¥8L°098°2 LES'6V6'T 905 'CTE 0 Lol 860°'Sv¢E S§98'S¥t (ZSNAAXH) /ANNIATE ONIIWIHJO-NON TYLIOL
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 SNOLLNETELNOD NOLLWNOEYTI0D
(602'%) LLE'TT 0 LLe'et 0 T€2'Y 0 TET'¥ HWODNI INAWLSTANI
(698'292) 0 (zzg) (821 'z22) (056°'222) (00L‘TE) 0 (1) (99L'L2) (L9L'L2) ISNEAXH AI0-NON ATHLO
€90 %¥T € E€PL'E %¥92’'L2T LOO'TET E€0'6T 0T LES'T 806'ST S¥PLT HONIATY ¥AJO-NON WTHIO
(69L'6¥%S) 0 (€) (8v9'02S) (159'02S) (12L'89) 0 0 (180'59) (180’59} ASNIAXT\IONIATY INI aNOd 0D
Z0T'€9€’T 0 (2) 0ZE'LOT'T 8TE'LOV'T 88€0LT 0 0 ST6'SLT ST6'SLT SAXYL d0dd ANOE 09
889°'6%9'T 0 0 9L6'826°T 9L6'8Z6'T TTL'S0Z 0 0 [44 SR8 24 [44 S0 44 ANNEAEY XYL ALI3d0d8d
£82'STZ 39 TSh €L 000'0%T TSP €12 S6L'8T (00T) (000'S) 000's 0 SNOILYNOQ
*ASNHIXH\IONIATS DNILVIAJO-NON
vyz/62/20 FONVINVA HONVIUVA sz/8Z/20 sz/8z/z0 vz/62/20 FONVINVA HONYINYA sz/8z/T0 sz/8z/T0
WA 40T INSDYId DAN/S0a rapand TYOLOY ¥X YOI INZDUE oaN/s0& Iasang TOIOY
......... R - A A (s e A 4 - P R LRt e | fmmmmemmmmcecee oo HINOW INS¥HOD---=--===v=e=<-w-rm--cescca-=
sz/87/70 aor¥=Ea ¥od
€20S6 VYO ‘NALSITIOH
TENTSHOD - TYIIJSOH TYINOWEW SNIMMYH TS2VH

¢ adud

YANYTIAS ‘X980
150T @ SZ/8T/€0 :33=Q

Page 49



162'S%5'¢ SS9 TI€°180°0T 05S0'6€S°T T9€'029'TT zZ9'LE8 £VE £25'61L'2 958'T6L 6LE'ZTIS'E (SSOT) EWODNI ONILWNHAO LEN
€T €8T 08 € 8L '9TE T zg0'z9L €8 058'BL0'98 LOT'080°0T v 05T '88¢€ vIL'088°'6 ¥98°89Z '0T SASNAdXE TYLOL
9€¥'ZT0'E € L66'L8 §59'%20°¢€ Zs9'eIT’E 0FT'LOY S LvZ'81 veL'0s¢e TEO '69¢F YHHLO
8LL'SED vE oLz'’st 196 '€2T TEZ'66C 680 '0€ (08) (z61'22) vZ8 LT ZE9'S LSEITLNT
z¥s'esz’'e 0 (€L1'9) 0Z5'1€2°Z Lye‘szz'e 12z'182 0 (tse) 0%6'8LZ 689°'8LZ IMOWY 3 NOILLVIDHAYGAd
605°'060'T s 8€0°09 6L9'B9T'T LTL'BZT'T 085'T¥T 9T LT6'TT 899 'PET §85'95T TYINTY
LOL'0T6 L 8T ¥60 '0ES’T €9€°LZE'8 LS¥'LSB'6 6¥€’2Z90'T 8z 8¥0‘L9Z LES'6S6 SBS'92Z'T SHDIANES QASYHOUNd
S%¥Z'9€9°L zT ZTT'698 908 'S8T’L 816 °'v50'8 ¥0€'¥LE [} 62798 099'L06 680 ‘%66 SgI1744NS
99Z'5L6'CT (¥) (99% '85¥) 809 'p96°'CT TH1'906°2T 0TE'02S'T (z) (191'L2) €0Z'%6% 1T ZV0'L9¥’T s934 TYNOISSAIOUd
6zZ’'TLL'TT (s) (8z8'TLL) T%9°96T 9T pI8'T8% €T 9%T'65L'T (s) (0ST'08) €6L'669°'T €79 '6T9'T SLIJANAE FIXOTIWE
60%'182'2 yET zez'evi'e 000'009°T ezeievL'e LOT'96€E 0T LSZ'092 000002 LSZT'09% AYLSIDTY
LT0'98L 6T (%) (86%'0TZ'T) 6v8'6LL'TE TG€'696'T¢E z98'L0S’€E (%) (€66 'SET) S0E‘LZ8'E TTE'T169°¢E SEOYM ¥ SATUVIVS
:SESNAdXE ONIIVIIJO
8Z% '8ZL €8 ST 6L0°'86€°ZT ZET'T0E'SB TIZ'669°L6 626'LT6°0T 62 €L9°LOT'E 0LS'EL9’OT €PZ ' TOL ET HONIAHY ONILWVNEJO HLOOV LaAN
788 €6’V zL 80€’'8%T € 8%0 ‘€BE’¥ 95€ ‘TES 'L 0ET L9¥ YLE 0¥9'LY0°C T88°LVS 125'S65'C SNNIATE ONILYHEd0 YHHIO
9¥S ‘vEC 6L T TLL'6VT'6 $80°8T6 '08 §58'L9T 06 869059 0T 11 £E€0°090°T 689°'S2T°0T ZZL'SBT'TT HANEAZY INEIIVd JLOOV LN
TS '602° 961 z LET'TEL' Y 887 '¥E0'SE6T SBY'99L'66T €0L’BLLEZ (%) (026 '1L6) TOL'LLE'¥T 18L'S0% ‘€T HONEAZY WOJA SNOILONJHEd HLOJY TILOL
YIE'¥S 0 0 0 0 LET'9 0 0 0 0 MOTTY TYAIOWILNOD SAAd\LSITYLIIASOH
78€'266 'L 9 890'62T'2 0BE'6TE BE 8%%'85Y /9t EET'6FT'F (8) (60€'T¥E) Lo6'6LZ'¥ 865'8€6'€ SINAWLSACAY ONY STYLOWIINOD JAHIO
06L'LTE 1¥2) (z9s'¢€L) Z6T'Z1E 0€9'8€2 z0G 9T St 8€2'62 ¥€0'6€ TLe'e9 IO ALIVYHD
S9%'THL'S 9€ z80°0TS'T 826 'LYT'¥ 0T0’'859°S €IT'#L0'T (82) (098’9%T) 0€9'8TS OLL'TLE HSNEAXT LEId avd
BBS €25 ‘9L 0 €LT'vE T9L'TTO0 8L $T0'9%0 ‘8L 06T °TTIE’6 (L) (ETE'T89) 06T 'L¥L'E 89L6'930'6 SHONYMOTTY TYALDVALNOD TWD-IQHEW
¥86'695'9L T 9EE'ZET'T LY0'€vT 8L €8€’'SLE'6L Lz9'122's z ¥Z€'89T 0vB8’'Z6L’6 ¥9T'196'6 SHONYMOTTY TYALOVIINOD HAVOIAANW
$EIADY FNNIATY WO¥A SNOILDNdAd
890 ' ¥P¥ ELE S 896 ‘186 ‘€T TLE'TS6'SLT O¥€ ‘vE6 ‘68T T0%'62Z %€ 0 £11°68 06€ ‘€05 ¥E €05 '165'PE AONFASY INIILVE ALAOY SSOUD TYIOL
£€0'%9T'9TZ 5 SLP'8¥9°1T 06€'€L6‘6TT 598°'TZ9 ‘T€T €92'%28°'92 T THE'68¢€ T12'692'LE z55'8L9'LT ANNIATY INFIIVALNO SSO¥D TYLOL
BEB "E0S Ly 0 LY 9%T'0L LY 0 Ly SANFARY d\O LSITYLIdSOH
S6T°'099°STe S 8Z¥'8%9'TT 06E'ELE'6TT 8T8'TZ9'1¢€2 LTT'¥SL'92 T ¥67'68¢€ TTZ’682'L2 505°6L9°LT FONIATY INZILVALNO AYVTTIONY
GE0°08Z°LS v v6v'€EE’T 286°8L6'SS 9Ly 'ZTE’'8S 8ET'S0% L (%) (8zz'10¢E) 6LT'PTE L 156°'216'9 HONIATY INIIIWINI SSO¥D TYIOL
090°T0E’T 0 0 0 0 L96'06T 0 0 0 0 FNNIAFY d\I LSITYLIJSOH
9TB'689'62 9 6T6'606'T 918 68962 SEL'66G'TE 8€6°800'% (€) (6L6'TTT) SV6°800°% 996'968 '€ FNNIATY INITIIVANI XAWTTIONY
6ST'682'92 z LG ETY 99168292 0bL’2ZTL 9T €€C’'502 € (9) (6%2'68T) €T '502 '€ G86°'STO'E AONIATY ANILOOY
tHONIASE INIIIYd SSO¥D
vz/62/20 TONVIUVA FONWIAVA s2/92/20 sz/ez/zo vz/6z/zZ0 HDNVINVA HDNWIAVYA sz/8t/T0 sz/8z/z0
¥X 3OINa INADYEL DaN/sod Lapang TYOIOY WX FOI¥d INEDYES DEN/50d Lasansg TEOIOV

R E T L --==~-BINOW INZMMND--=-=-----=-=--=

ALITIOVA EALOOY

SZ/87/Z0 QoI¥aEd ¥od
€Z0S6 ¥O ‘YALSITIOH
- TYLIASOH TYINOWEW SNIMMVH TIZVH

1 39vd

VINWIIAS :I3sn
IS0T ® S2/8T/€0 :33eq

Page 50



zazsss=ss=se

sumussmn AEEEEEEESERE

EEEEAEEAEREE

wEIRaAZRaEZERE

ssssssssanasn

LTO'806'S 324 LS0'0LT'0T ¥66'65T'¥ TS00€E’#T 65L792T'T 9%2 06Z°02ZL°2 L6 'LOT'T 92°'828'¢€ (SSOT) SNIAYNS LAN
9EL'ZIE’T € 9%L'88 ¥%6°'029'C 069'60L'T LE6'BBT 0 L9L 8TIT'STE §88°'GT¢E (ISNIAXE) /HNNIATY DNILVIHJO-NON TYIOL
0 0 0 0 0 0 Q 0 0 0 SNOIIAEIEINOD NOIILWNOEYIT0D
(602'%) LLE'TZT 0 LLe'et [ 1€’y 0 €T’y HWODNI INIWLSHANI
(L9S'%02) T (028) (¥29'2LT) (Po%'€ELT) (z1%'s2) 0 0 (8LS'T2) (8L5'1Z) HSNEJXE YIJO-NON YIHIO
€90 '%¥T € evL'e ¥9ZLCT LOO'TET €€0’6T £k LES'T 806 °ST S%% ‘LT FNNIATY JAJO-NON UAHLO
(69L'6%S) 0 (€) (8%9'029) (ts9'029) (teL'89) 0 0 (180's9) (180'59) ISNIIXI\FNANAATY INI ANOE 0D
ZTOT'E9E'T 0 (2) 0ZE'LOV'T BTE'LOV'T 88E'0LT 0 ] ST6'SLT ST6'SLY SEXYL dodd aNod 0D
ZEB'B6E'T 0 0 ZE9'6E9'T ZE9'6E9'T ¥58'¥LT 0 0 %56 '%0C ¥56 %02 HONFATY XYL AL¥a40dd
£82'STC €5 IS%'€L 000°0%T TS¥€TT s6L°81 (00T) (000 'S} 000‘S 0 SNOILLYNOQ
:ISNIIXI\FANTATY ONILYIIJO-NON
¥z/62/20 FONVINVYA HONVIIVA sz/8z/zo sz/82/20 ¥z/62/20 FONVINVA SONVIdVA sZ/82/20 sz/9z/z0
¥X IOIF INTOUH 9aN/sod IEoang TALOY ¥R YOTH¥d INEDUIA DaAN/50d IaEsvang TYOIDY

[===m=emmmesoememeee oo oo - HINOW INSWNOD--=----=-==

XLITIOVYd dILOOVY -

SZ/82/20 aoI¥Ed ¥od
£€20S6 VYO ‘MALSITION

TYLIASOH TNIYOWSEW SNIMMVH TRZVH

¢ do¥d

WAUIVIIAS
TS0T @ SZT/8T/€0

T I9S8N
:93eQ

Page 51



£29'916'T 14 SSL‘BTE LEQ'OTL Z6L°8Z0°T €D '€CT »T 0EV 0T YIE €L v6L'E8 (SSOT) sSNI3UNS LAN
¥SS ‘88T 0 (z) 0v8‘6€C 8E8 '6€C 695 €T 0 0 086 ‘6T 086 ‘62 (ESNEdXE) /EONIATN ONILWIAdO-NON TYIOL
(z0E'89) 0 (z) (v05'6%) {905 '6%) (882 ‘L) 0 0 (8BT'9) (8BT'9) HSNAAXH UTJO-NON YITHLO
958 '9%2 0 0 v¥E 682 »vE 682 LSB'0€ 0 0 89T ’'9¢€ 89T'9¢ HONTATY XUl ALIEJ0¥d
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 SNOTLYNOG
s ASNHAXE\ ANNIATY ONILYHEdO-NON
690°B2L'2 89 LSL'BTE L6T'OLY 756 °88L z98'66 24 0EY 0T ¥8E ‘€Y $TB'ES (SS077) FWODNI ONILVHAdO 1IN
S0L'BYL'ET T SLY'E9T S00'%29'%T 08%'L8L PT 0LY'6TL'T (T) (L69'EE) 68L'2WL'T z60'60L'T SHSNEAXE TYLOL
£€02'L0% T vz9'e 790 ‘€% 989 '9¥%¥ L¥5'95 T €¥9'S 69Z'TS 16 '99 ATHLO
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 LSHIFINT
§6¢'9TE (1) (zIT'%) 96Z'9TE Y8BT’ C1E SL9'6E (1) (.82) LES'6E 1SZ'6€E NOIIWIDAYGAT
LEE’S ZLs 690'6¥ sL5°8 ¥¥9 LS zse't §28°T 950°ST L86 £v0°9T TILNTA
%0%°S99 %L SL6'S6 268°'669 £98'S6L LS6 ‘69 8¢ 9L8'CT 8%9'08 $Z2S'€0T SADIAYES QISYHOUNd
080°'L8L 0 (L1S'T) £8€°L9L 998'59¢L 6ET' 96 (z1) (€52'TD) SS0'v6 zov'ze S411d40s
089°LT (s) (066) 0L9'8T 089’LT otc'e € 85 [4:3 484 otz’e SHEd TYNOISSHAOAd
zsLeeL’e (e} (66T 'L92) (A2 28-TASE ] €¥Z'858°¢€ 6EL'09Y (01} (zeL '9%) 6EE'T6Y L09'¥VY S1IJANAS FFACTIWA
TTT ' VET 95 T60'0ET 006 '€€T T66'€9¢€ ¥ET 59 zs €56 '€T 166°'9¢2 Y06 0% AULSIONA
SEL'PES L [4 €ES‘8ST S8L°0T0'8 8TE‘691'6 LT8'0T6 (€) (0T9'2E) 158556 T¥Z'€26 SADYM I STTAVIVS
:SESNAJRE ONILYIEA0
VLL'9LY 9T € [42 48417 z0T'%60'ST YEF'9LS ST TEE'6T9'T (1) (L92'€2) ELT98L'T 906°'29L'T HONIATY ONILVIHJO ANS LIN
0 0 ] 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 SONZAHY ONILVYEdO YFHLO
VLL'9LD 9T € (A3 AR 4:} Z0Z'%60°ST PEV’'ILS ‘ST ZEE'6T8'T () (L92'€2) €LT9BL'T 906°29L'T ANNIATY INFTIV ANS LaN
LBLLET'E S L6T' 00T TSE‘0E6'T BY9'0L0'E 0LZ 'Sty 9z £L5'88 080’ L¥E €59'S€E¥ FNNIATY WO¥d SNOIIONAAd INS TYIOL
9Tz ‘86T (1) (€L0°€E) 6ET'€ST 990 ‘0S¢ 8¥E'9T (%9) (ZST'6T) 65662 L0B’0T SINIWLSACAY ANV STYNLDVALNOD YTHLO
LS9'T 8E¥ ' T2 0 8ET’T9 LS9’z 8EL’T9 0 8EY'T9 FYYD ALTIVHD
(220 '€9) (€TT1) (LST'S¥) 000°0F (LST'S) THT'TT 86 1IZ'6¥ 000'’Ss 1T12'%S ASNEdXE 1d3d avd
TLS'9S2'T (6T) (60€°S8T) YOE‘ZLE 566°98L 816 LLT (0€) (zsz've) SLO'STT vzg'o8 SHONYMOTTY TYALOVALNOD TYD-IAEW
99€'€2ZL'T 6T 96€'Z1¢ 806°'%¥99'T 90€'LL6’T $91'9€Z 9T LZE'TE 9%0‘L6T €LE'8ZZ SHONYMOTTY TYALOVALNCD FAWYIIAEW
tANS FONIATY WO¥d SNOILONAHA
19S'vL9 6T v 62S'2e9 £95'%20°8T Z80'L¥9 8T 109'%92'C 3 90€‘S9 €ST'EET’T 655'861°2 ENNIATY LNZILYd dNS SSO¥D TYIOL
YLE'TIIV T zT 08%'€TE z88'255'2 Z9£°998'2 T88'9%E LT 600'09 07T ‘Z0€E 6VT'TSE ANNAATE ANS AIWTTIONY
88T '€TZ LT [4 6%0'60¢ TL9 TLY'ST 0ZL708L°ST 0ZL LT6 T T L6Z'ST ETT'1€8'T 0T¥'9%8'T IANTATA NS INILOOA
PEAANIATY LNAIIYE ANS SSO¥D
¥z/62/20 SONYINVA TONVINVA sz/8z/z0 sz/ez/2o ¥z/62/20 FONVIAVYA FONYTAVA sZ/82/20 sz/8z/20
¥Z 20TEL INEDuTA DIAN/S0d 1EHang TYOIOY ¥R HOIVA INFOWIA DaAN/S50d LEDang TYOALOY

SZ/8Z/20 QOI¥Ad d¥od
WO ‘¥ILSITIOH
SATLITIONA ONISUON GATILAS SNINMVYEH TEZVE

T #9%d

WINYTIQS :A9sn
TS0T ® 5Z/8T/€0 :332Q

Page 52



Date: 03/18/25 @ 1051
User: SDILAURA

PAGE 1

HAZEL HAWKINS MEMORIAL HOSPITAL

HOLLISTER, CA

For the month ended 02/28/25

CURR MONTH PRIOR MONTH POS/NEG PERCENTAGE PRIOR YR
02/28/25 01/31/25 VARIANCE VARIANCE 06/30/24

CURRENT ASSETS
CASH & CASH EQUIVALENT 26,201,019 27,314,301 (1,113,282) (4) 35,145,624
PATIENT ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE 73,229,894 65,766,315 7,463,580 11 67,848,785
BAD DEBT ALLOWANCE (7,481,092) (7,750,215) 269,124 (4) (9,487,617)
CONTRACTUAL RESERVES (49,214,233) (44,058,764) (5,155,469) 12 (46,279,766)
OTHER RECEIVABLES 7,589,992 6,255,337 1,334,655 21 5,931,344
INVENTORIES 4,485,091 4,490,095 (5,004) 0 4,496,070
PREPAID EXPENSES 2,254,721 2,288,168 (33,447) (2) 1,775,026
DUE TO\FROM THIRD PARTIES 80,119 272,832 (192,713) (71) 200,709
TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS 57,145,513 54,578,069 2,567,443 5 59,630,175
ASSETS WHOSE USE IS LIMITED
BOARD DESIGNATED FUNDS 8,190,862 7,914,767 276,096 4 3,512,919
TOTAL LIMITED USE ASSETS 8,190,862 7,914,767 276,096 4 3,512,919
PROPERTY, PLANT, AND EQUIPMENT
LAND & LAND IMPROVEMENTS 3,370,474 3,370,474 0 1] 3,370,474
BLDGS & BLDG IMPROVEMENTS 100,098,374 100,098,374 0 ] 100,098,374
EQUIPMENT 45,551,631 45,522,947 28,684 0 44,435,024
CONSTRUCTION IN PROGRESS 3,096,230 2,975,110 121,121 4 1,393,964
GROSS PROPERTY, PLANT, AND EQUIPMENT 152,116,709 151,966, 904 149,805 0 149,297,836
ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION (97,064,504) (96,731,822) (332,682) 0 (94,409,166)
NET PROPERTY, PLANT, AND EQUIPMENT 55,052,205 55,235,082 (182,877) 0 54,888,670
OTHER ASSETS
UNAMORTIZED LOAN COSTS 350,859 356,770 (5,911) (2) 398,148
PENSION DEFERRED OUTFLOWS NET 7,038,149 7,038,149 0 0 7,038,149
TOTAL OTHER ASSETS 7,389,008 7,394,919 (5,911) 0 7,436,297

ses=sassso=s ss=c==ssooss= esscsassnmss =ss====as= sa== ==
TOTAL UNRESTRICTED ASSETS 127,777,588 125,122,837 2,654,751 2 125,468,061
RESTRICTED ASSETS 128,802 128,754 49 ] 127,119
TOTAL ASSETS 127,906,330 125,251,591 2,654,799 2 125,595,180

Page 53




Date: 03/18/25 @ 1051
User: SDILAURA

HAZEL HAWKINS MEMORIAL HOSPITAL
HOLLISTER, CA

For the month ended 02/28/25

CURR MONTH PRIOR MONTH POS/NEG PERCENTAGE PRIOR YR
02/28/25 01/31/25 VARIANCE VARIANCE 06/30/24

CURRENT LIABILITIES
ACCOUNTS PAYABLE 5,959,776 6,797,857 838,182 (12) 8,572,685
ACCRUED PAYROLL 1,517,447 1,582,525 65,078 (4) 5,824,977
ACCRUED PAYROLL TAXES 1,371,845 1,252,455 (119,390} 10 1,608,471
ACCRUED BENEFITS 4,977,565 5,350,807 373,242 (7) 6,695,829
OTHER ACCRUED EXPENSES 58,596 51,854 (6,742) 13 89,559
PATIENT REFUNDS PAYABLE 1,470 1,470 0 0 12,920
DUE TO\FROM THIRD PARTIES (1,216,208) (974,028) 242,180 25 2,355,584
OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES 724,805 554,184 (170,621) 3 611,755
TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES 13,395,295 14,617,224 1,221,928 (8) 25,771,780
LONG-TERM DEBT
LEASES PAYABLE 4,662,847 4,669,706 6,859 0 5,107,486
BONDS PAYABLE 31,513,961 31,542,481 28,520 0 31,742,121
TOTAL LONG TERM DEBT 36,176,807 36,212,186 35,3739 0 36,849,607
OTHER LONG-TERM LIABILITIES
DEFERRED REVENUE ] ) 0 0 - 0
LONG-TERM PENSION LIABILITY 23,814,514 23,814,514 0 0 23,814,514
TOTAL OTHER LONG-TERM LIABILITIES 23,814,514 23,814,514 0 0 23,814,514
TOTAL LIABILITIES 73,386,617 74,643,924 1,257,307 (2) 86,435,901
NET ASSETS:
UNRESTRICTED FUND BALANCE 39,064,686 39,064,686 0 0 39,064,686
RESTRICTED FUND BALANCE 96,276 96,228 (49) 0 94,593
NET REVENUE/ (EXPENSES) 15,358,811 11,446,753 (3,912,058} 34 0
TOTAL NET ASSETS 54,519,774 50,607,667 8 39,159,279
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS 127,906,390 125,251,591 (2,654,799) 2 125,595,180

SE=ssasoEEEss

mnssasEoan

TesEEEEESSS

Page 54




o

Hazel Hawkins

MEMORIAL HOSPITAL San Benito Health Care District
Hazel Hawkins Memorial Hospital
FEBRUARY 2025
Description MTD Budget MTD Actual YTD Actual YTD Budget FYE Budget
Average Daily Census - Acute 17.28 16.39 14.57 15.00 14.90
Average Daily Census - SNF 86.13 83.73 85.00
Acute Length of Stay 3.04 3.00 2.90
ER Visits:
Inpatient 1,096 936 1,444
Outpatient 17,408 16,701 25,269
Total 18,504 17,637 26,713
Days in Accounts Receivable 50.0 50.0 50.0
Productive Full-Time Equivalents 521.33 527.01 521.33 521.33
Net Patient Revenue 11,911,862 12,948,628 105,744,290 96,012,286 144,649,605
Payment-to-Charge Ratio 32.5% 35.2% 34.3% 32.7% 32.7%
Medicare Traditional Payor Mix 29.56% 32.07% 28.52% 28.95% 28.51%
Commercial Payor Mix 21.78% 22.52% 23.40% 21.72% 21.88%
Bad Debt % of Gross Revenue 1.42% 1.20% 1.83% 1.42% 1.42%
EBIDA 1,416,747 4,146,931 17,232,658 6,753,303 9,671,943
EBIDA % 11.37% 26.68% 15.21% 6.73% 6.40%
Operating Margin 6.71% 22.94% 10:95% 2.00% 1.72%
Salaries, Wages, Registry & Benefits %:
by Net Operating Revenue 57.80% 46.19% 54.02% 60.77% 61.10%
by Total Operating Expense 61.95% 59.94% 60.66% 62.01% 62.15%
Bond Covenants:
Debt Service Ratio 1.25 1.25 5.18
Current Ratio 1.50 1.50 2.00
Days Cash on hand 30.00 30.00 100.00

Within 10% of Target

Page 55




souelep

pueH uo ysed paiaspng

(296'799)

186'G92'92$

09'vQ

8S5°G0VE

pueH uo ysen shkeq [euoneiadQ

181G U3 uny o} Aep Jad 180D

0$ 610°102°929 610°402'92%
¥29's¥L'G¢E L0ErLe /2
(509°'vv6'8) (z8Z'chL'y)
(zg) 0
(008°229) {6.2£'a¢)
0 0
Spuod TZ0Z Y Spuod £T0Z 40 Bupueuyay 13 |ediduid 05 v10Z AOO—._wNNv AONm,wNV
(0v9'vvi) (658'9)
(625'6tt'L) (066'61L)
uoneztpowy 98¢ LY 116's
spuog 1207 'g {002} bTOT - 1u3wAed juf g [edpduld puog vam_mmo,vv Awmo_wwwv
0 0
(r28'818'2) (s08's¥1)
(£80°L81L°91) (L26'69S'Y)
Spuog anuaAdY TZOZ '3 0D S00T - U] [BNUUY-IW3S 150'cLL 129041
(z62'125'€) (o8l'zve)
(6¥¥'LL) 0
(¥96'08) Trl'e
(ozv'z9z'9) (oga'ale)
0 0
(o16'219'2) (zg1'g¢8)
065'0Z1 €12'261
(£69'6.%) Lyp'ee
6.6'01 ¥00's
(8v9'89'L) (559'vpee't)
(ZoL'sst'y) (e£2'225'2)
0ve'559'2 z89'zee
£78'86€'G1$ 850'C16'e$
§202/821T G20z/82/T
ajeq-of-1esA Yjuopw
‘—:N._a_._o uauiny

SINININOD

MOT4 HSVYD

poulad jo pu3 ‘yseo
poliad jo Buuuibag 'ysed
yses ui (asealnaq)/esealssu] 9N

S13SSY A3 LDI¥LSTH NI ISYIHOIA/(ISYIHOND

salIAoy Buioueurd 1oy pasn yses 31oN
qel] wia] Buon Jaulo ul (ssesmaq)/esesiou)
199Q ebebuol puog ui (asealosq)/esealou]
199 @seaT [eyde) ul (asealoeq)/asealou]

‘STLLIAILOY ONIONVNIA WOY4 SMOTd HSYO

saanoy Bunsaau| Aq pasn ysed JoN
S}9SSY JAUIQ Ul asealsa(/(aseaouy)
S}9sSYy 98 pPajiw| JBYO Ut asealsaq/(eses.ou|)
S)USLUISSAL| PUE YSED 3S[ PAHWIT Ul 8sea10aq/(asealouy)
juawdinb3 pue jue|d ‘Ansdoid Jo aseysind
‘SAILIAILOY ONILSIANI WOHd SMOT4 HSYD

:saniAnoy Bunesad Aq papiroid yses JoN
S8IIIgRIT JUsLINY JBYlQ Ul (ssealdaq)/asealou|
sallljlger/saoueapy Aled plyL Ul (eses1oaq)/esealou|
a|qefed spuniay Jusied Ul (esealoaq)/esesiou]
sesuadx3 panooy Ul (aseaioa(g)/eseasou|
sjyauag pue [[olhed ponIdoy Ui (asealos(q)/eseaiouy)
a|eAed SUBOT pue SJON Ul (8SB2109(])/0SeaI0U|
a|qeded SIUNOODY Ul (9582109(Q)/9sEaIdU|
salued pdiy) Wol- ang ul aseasoag/(esealou))
sasuadx3 pled-ald Ul esea109(q/(asealou))
$91I0JUBAU| Ul 8seaioaq/(esealour)
$3|qeAgaY Jayl0 Ut asealdaq/(aseasou))
2|qeAIe08y SJUNOJDY Judned JoN Ul asealoaq/(aseasol])
uopeioaldaqg
. 'saIAlOY BulesadQ Aq papinoid -
YsSeD }oN 0} 3Woosu| 13N 3)1ouooay 0} sjuswisnipy
(ss07) swooy| 1N
‘SALIALLOY ONILYHIHO INOYd SMOTH HSVYD

$20Z ‘8z Arenigay Buipue syjuow 3ybi3
VO “9)sijioH
[eNdsoH [eLloWBY SUDMEH [9ZeH

SMO|4 Yse) JO Juswsje}s

Page 56



Y8Y'9S LT SS6°ELL9T

(8€¥'S2¥°2) (980'060°€)

£15'690T €ERLYY'ET

7E0L6°8T 80T'T2¥9

¥8Yv95 LT GS6'ELL9T

€06'7L8'6 889'€92'0T
'GZ0T ‘0€ aunrysnoayi Apauenb paradx3  ££8TSHT £29°29. SOHQ

‘9JUsU3IP 1502 [enjoe uo paseg - -
"QLA StuswiAed J30 pUE 1B ‘puZ IST p,oaY €98v1T'e SDHQ
'GZ0T ‘0€ aunr Ag 1uawAed 11b yip 23y 01 pajdadxy T79'180°T SOHQ
'¥Z07/L2/90 8 ¥20T/E€T/S0 ‘¥T0T/6T/E0 U0 P,23) SO PIE 18 pUz ‘IST  TEL'SOT'S : SOHA
‘Y20z ‘v "das 99y £/5'690°T £15°690T SOHA
'GZ0T AUN["dx3 'FZ0Z ‘TT Y2JBIN UO PaAadRy  LTL'SHT'Y 000°00TY SOHA
*sjuawied 192.1Q
T85'689°L £92°0159
%20t ‘6 49qWd3Q U0 pled *5z0z ‘€ Aenuerang (980°060°€) PIsIa
'¥20C/80/¥0 uo pled  (8€b'22T'T) o 1213510
'¥20¢/97/T0 uo pled  (000'€ST'T) > PUISIa
"1THQ 3Y3 Aq pa1easd weldold maN *SZ0Z AeiAl ul ps1oadxy - £58°0TL SJHA
'G70z Aoy ul pardadx] 3 097'TIEY SDHQ
“Ae/judy Ui patoadxa spuny ‘S9°0SE°TE3'TS 10 20T ‘9T “094 AQ LDl £SL'6SH'E - wayiuy
'G70z Aenuaga4 ug paaiRday IYT'6EET woayuy
"AeN/Indy Ul pa1dadxe Spuny ‘80 ‘TS 4O ¥T0T ‘ST U4 Aq 1DL  6£1'ST0'T > wayiuy
'S70T Ay ug pa1dadxg 000°5Z¥'C HVY2D
"unf/ABIAl Ul pa1adXa SPUNY ‘RELZST'TS JO ¥ZOT ‘TT YIBN AQ 191 8LT°TEV'T - wayluy
'TTOT AD 40429942 £Z0T ‘T JOGWISAON UO P31 JUNOWR 13N 8bS'S0Y'C - wayuy
'GZ0T duUNf "dx3 "auUNf Ul p,33s SPUNY ‘TS €88'90SS ‘vT/rZ/v0 UO pled 2Ly vEY 001'68€ SOHA
'GZ0Z un( “dx3 ‘duNnf Ul p,231 SpUny ‘€9°SZS'9STS ‘YT/LT/P0 Uo pled  S8/°/0F 000°'sZY SOHA
‘uinjal Suiydiew Joy yem pue wesdoud puny 03 IsIg salinbay
‘S310N ¥20Z AMd SZ0Z A4 JloAed
|en1ay |enjoy

sjuswAed jejusawa|ddng 19N
pied |[B10L

Buipuad |e301

P3AI923Y (e10t

s|e10) pueis weisold

|B303-gNS 19)-UoN

(HS@) 24eys seuolliodoadsiq |BD-IPBIA -

(4N/da) Axjioey BuisinN ‘Wed 1unsiq -

{lIA (4¥DH) pund asueinssy Anfenp |eNdsoH 6€7 95 -
I1IA (4¥OH) pung souelnssy Aljenp [e)dsoH 6£T €S -
(4¥DH) pun4 soueanssy AWenp [eHdSOH 6£7 4S -
(4¥DH) pung 2dueanssy Ayjenp teudsoH 65z 45 -
¥T-€20T AS ST6 9V -

:swesdodd J2jsuel] [eIuaWUIDA0SIU-UON

1e103-qns 19|

ludwAeday ueO] G Ad dID -
JudswAeday UBO] PUZ ¥ Ad dID -
ucwc;mawm UBOT IST ¥ Ad n__O -
€202 AD (daHQ) siuawAed pa1daui( |eddsoH 101481 -
JUBWII113S 9 Ad dID -
JUBWRNIAS § Ad dID -
€207 'T€ '93Q Y38noJy1 7zoz ‘T "uer a3uey aley -
20T ‘T€ 994 Y3noJy1 zgoz ‘T ‘uer aduey siey -
#20Z AD (4¥DH) pund aoueinssy Ayjenp |e)dsoH 6z 4S -
€202 AD (dVOH) pund asueinssy Ayjenp [endsoH 6€z 495 -
7202 AD (4YDH) pung aoueinssy Anfenp [endsoH 6£z 95 -
S20Z/20T A4S WL $Z0Z/€70T A4S
$202/€20T A4S WuaWAeRd |BUlY £20Z/220T A4S
{HdAN) |eudsoH 11gnd pa1eusisaQ-uoN €TT 9V -
"mEmgmogn_ Aojsues] _mu:ur::hm>omhuu:_

ST0T ‘0€ 3unf JA4 ‘SZOT ‘8Z Aenagad Jo sy
sweidold JuawAhed jeyuawaiddng
{eNdsoH [eLIOWBIA SUBMeH |3zeH

Page 57



~

Hazel Hawkins

MEMORIAL HOSPITAL

Board of Directors Contract Review Worksheet

Agreement for Professional Services with Lorilee Sutter, M.D.

Executive Summary: Dr. Lorilee Sutter is a board-certified rheumatologist with extensive experience
who originally joined the District in 2012, then moved out of the area in 2022. She will play a vital
role in the orthopedic clinic serving patients with both common and complex rheumatology
conditions. Her return will help strengthen access to specialized care for the community.

Recommended Board Motion: It is recommended the hospital Board approve the Professional
Services Agreement with Lorilee Sutter, M.D. at a rate of $195 per hour up to 80 hours per month.

Services Provided: Part-fime rheumatology professional services.

Agreement Terms:
Coniract Effecti Esimated Base Estimated
Term hye Date Monthly Cost Annual Cost ey clause
2 years 4/10/2025 $15,600 $187,200 &0 days

Page 58



PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT

This Professional Services Agreement (“Agreement™) is made, entered into and effective as of April 10, 2025
(“Effective Date™), by and between San Benito Health Care District, a local health care district organized and
operated pursuant to Division 23 of the California Health and Safety Code (“SBHCD”), and Lorilee Sutter, M.D.
(“Physician”).

RECITALS

SBHCD owns and operates Hazel Hawkins Memorial Hospital, a licensed general acute care facility
located at 911 Sunset Drive, Hollister, California (“Hospital””). Hospital provides inpatient and outpatient
services to residents of the San Benito Health Care District and surrounding communities which constitute
the Hospital’s service area (“Hospital Service Area”).

SBHCD owns and operates specialty and rural health clinic as defined in Title 22, California Code of
Regulations section 51115.5 to provide services to patients in the Hospital Service Area (“Clinic”).

Physician is licensed to practice medicine in the State of California, is a member in good standing of the
medical staff of Hospital and is experienced and qualified to provide rheumatology services.

Section 32129 of the California Health and Safety Code provides that a health care district may contract
with a Physician to render professional health services in order to ensure that adequate health care is
available to all residents within its service area.

SBHCD has determined that entering into this Agreement with Physician is in the best interests of the
Hospital and the public health of the residents of the Hospital Service Area and is an appropriate way to
assure availability of specialty and rural health clinic services to patients in the Hospital Service Area.

The parties desire to enter into this Agreement to set forth their respective responsibilities in connection
with the Services provided by Physician in the Hospital Service Area during the term of this Agreement.

The parties hereby agree as follows:

1.1

1.2

Sutter, MD - PSA eff 4-10-25

ARTICLE 1 - DUTIES AND OBLIGATIONS OF PHYSICIAN

Medical Services. Physician shall (“Physician”), provide professional health care services in Physician’s
medical specialty to patients at Clinic and/or Hospital and on the schedule more fully described in Exhibit
A, which is attached to this Agreement and incorporated by this reference (“Services”). Services include
Medicare services, Medi-Cal services, services pursuant to any other federal health care program or a
state health care financial program (“Governmental Programs”), workers’ compensation services, and
charity care. Physician shall cooperate to enable Clinic’s and Hospital’s participation in Medicare, Medi-
Cal, Governmental Programs, workers’ compensation services and commercial payor programs.
Physician shall provide Services to all patients, including Medicare, Medi-Cal, Governmental Program,
and workers’ compensation beneficiaries, in a non-discriminatory manner and in accordance with all
applicable laws and SBHCD policies and procedures, as developed and implemented in collaboration with
physician leadership of Hospital and Clinic.

Qualifications. Physician shall: (i) be duly licensed to practice medicine by the State of California; (ii)
be qualified to perform the Services by having adequate levels of competency and experience; (iii) have
skill comparable to those prevailing in the community; (iv) not be excluded from participation in any
governmental healthcare program; (v) be approved for and maintain active membership and/or clinical
privileges on the Hospital's medical staff in accordance with medical staff bylaws, rules and regulations,
and other medical staff governing directives; (vi) be certified as a participating physician in the Medicare
and Medi-Cal programs; and (vii) hold an unrestricted Drug Enforcement Administration ("DEA")
registration number.

Page 1 of 9

Page 59



13

1.4

1.5

1.6

1.7

1.8

2.1

2.2

23

Compliance. In connection with the operation and conduct of the Clinic and Hospital and rendition of
Services, Physician shall, at all times, comply with the applicable terms of this Agreement and with all
applicable federal, state and local laws, rules and regulations, including requirements for participation in
the Medicare and Medi-Cal programs, the Hospital medical staff bylaws, rules and regulations, and
applicable policies and procedures, and will at all times be aware of and participate in meeting the SBHCD
Corporate Compliance program goals and objectives.

Credentialing. In order to be efficiently credentialed with payors contracted with SBHCD, Physician shall
participate in the Council for Affordable Quality Healthcare (“CAQH”) credentialing program and shall
timely comply with requests from CAQH or SBHCD personnel for (i) credentialing information regarding
Physician, and (ii) documents necessary for the credentialing of Physician.

Use of Premises. No part of the SBHCD premises shall be used at any time by Physician as an office for
the general or private practice of medicine.

Medical Records/Chart Notes. Physician shall provide appropriate and necessary documentation for each
patient’s medical record for all patient encounters in the Clinic and Hospital in compliance with the

hospital’s and clinics’ policies and procedures.

Coding. Physician shall properly code all professional services rendered to patients. Physician’s coding
shall be used for purposes of billing for Services provided by Physician. All such coding shall be subject
to review and audit by an independent auditing company mutually agreed upon by the parties.

Professional Standards. In performing Services, Physician shall comply with the principles and ethics of
the American Medical Association, the California Medical Association and any federal, state or municipal
law, statute or ordinance dealing with the practice of medicine by Physician. Physician shall further abide
in all respects with the Code of Conduct applicable to professional health care providers of any hospital,
outpatient clinic or surgery center, including but not limited to SBHCD, at which Physician shall provide
professional services. Physician shall provide services to all SBHCD patients on a courteous and prompt
basis, be available and accessible to patients, provide them with full and meaningful information and
render services in a manner which assures continuity of care.

ARTICLE 2 - DUTIES AND OBLIGATIONS OF SBHCD

Duties. SBHCD agrees to furnish at its own cost and expense, for the operation of the Clinic and Hospital,
the following:

2.1.1 Space and Equipment. Space and Equipment as may be reasonably required for the operation of
the Clinic and Hospital as approved by SBHCD.

212 Services and Supplies. Maintenance, repair, and replacement of equipment as are reasonably
required; all utilities, including telephone, power, light, gas, and water; and all supplies that may
be reasonably required for the operation of the Clinic and Hospital.

2.1.3 Non-physician Personnel. All non-physician personnel with appropriate education, training and
experience required to operate the Clinic and Hospital, including a qualified administrative
manager. SBHCD shall have the sole right and responsibility for the hiring and termination of
all its employees. SBHCD shall be responsible for the scheduling of non-physician Clinic and

Hospital personnel.

Eligibility. At all times during the term of this Agreement, Clinics and Hospital shall remain eligible to
participate in the Medicare and Medi-Cal programs.

Contracts. SBHCD shall be solely responsible for negotiating all contracts for the reimbursement of
Services provided in the Clinic and Hospital. SBHCD in its sole and absolute discretion shall determine
the negotiation parameters for the terms, conditions, and rates for such contracts.

Page 2 of 9

Sutter, MD - PSA eff 4-10-25
Page 60



2.4

3.1

3.2

4.1

42

5.1

52

53

Sutter, MD - PSA eff 4-10-25

Access to Records. Physician shall have access to the SBHCD patient medical and business records for
quality of care and compliance purposes.

ARTICLE 3 - BILLING AND ASSIGNMENT OF REVENUE

Billing and Collection. SBHCD shall perform billing and collection services under this Agreement.
Physician shall cooperate with SBHCD and shall use his’her best efforts to furnish appropriate
documentation of patient care services provided by Physician to enable SBHCD to timely and accurately
bill and collect for such services.

Assionment of Professional Service Revenues. Physician hereby assigns to SBHCD the right to all
revenue from any and all patients, third-party payors, and governmental programs for all Services
rendered by Physician and its Physicians at the Hospital and the Clinic under this Agreement. The Parties
intend that SBHCD may bill and collect directly from the Medicare carrier for Physician’s services to
Medicare beneficiaries in compliance with Medicare Publication 100-04, Chapter 1, Sec. 30.2.7.

ARTICLE 4 - COMPENSATION FOR SERVICES BY PHYSICIAN

Compensation. As compensation for the provision of Services in the Clinic and Hospital, SBHCD shall
pay Physician as outlined in Exhibit A to this Agreement and in accordance with the normal SBHCD
contract payment process for Services provided by Physician. Physician shall not bill for facility fees,
administrative, supervisory, medical director, or similar services.

Schedule of Charges. SBHCD, in its sole and absolute discretion, shall decide upon the schedule of
charges for the Clinic and Hospital. Pursuant to California Health and Safety Code Section 32129, the
SBHCD Board of Directors may review the fees and charges for Services provided at the Clinic and
Hospital to ensure such fees and charges are reasonable, fair, and consistent with the basic commitment
of SBHCD to provide adequate health care to all residents within the Hospital Service Area.

ARTICLE 5 - TERM AND TERMINATION

Term. The term of this Agreement shall commence on the Effective Date and continue for a period of
two (2) years, ending on April 9, 2027 at 11:59 PM, unless terminated earlier as provided in this
Agreement, and shall renew for successive one (1) year periods upon mutual written agreement of the
parties.

Termination. Either party shall have the right to terminate this Agreement without stating a cause or
reason and without cost or penalty upon sixty (60) days’ prior written notice to the other party.
Notwithstanding, either party shall have the right to terminate the Agreement for cause upon written notice
to the other party as set forth below. If this Agreement is terminated prior to expiration of the initial year
of the term, the parties shall not enter into any new agreement or arrangement during the remainder of
such year.

Definition of Cause. For purposes of this Agreement, “cause” shall include, but not be limited to, the
occurrence of any of the following events:

53.1 SBHCD or Physician is in breach of any material term or condition of this Agreement and such
breach has not been cured within thirty (30) days following written notice of such breach.

5.3.2 SBHCD or Physician becomes insolvent or declares bankruptcy.

53.3 The license to practice medicine or to prescribe controlled substances of Physician is revoked or
suspended.

Page 3 of 9

Page 61



54

6.1

6.2

53.4 SBHCD fails to carry or reinstate the insurance required in ARTICLE 8 of this Agreement or
such coverage is cancelled or revoked within fifteen (15) days following notice of revocation
from its insurance carrier.

53.5 Upon the determination that Physician has violated a material term of ARTICLE 9 of this
Agreement.

53.6 The performance by either party of any term, condition, or provision of this Agreement which
jeopardizes the licensure of Hospital, Hospital’s participation in Medicare, Medi-Cal or other
reimbursement or payment program, or Hospital’s full accreditation by The Joint Commission or
any other state or nationally recognized accreditation organization, or the tax-exempt status of
Hospital’s bonds, or if for any other reason such performance violates any statute, ordinance, or
is otherwise deemed illegal, or is deemed unethical by any recognized body, agency, or
association in the healthcare fields, and the jeopardy or violation has not been or cannot be cured
within sixty (60) days from the date notice of such jeopardy or violation has been received by the
parties.

537 The loss of or reduction in Physician’s medical staff privileges at any facility where Physician
provides professional health care services, whether voluntary or involuntary.

5.3.8 Physician being charged with or convicted of a crime other than an infraction, traffic citation, or
similar charge.

53.9 Physician’s engagement in: (i) willful misconduct (which means the knowing and intentional
failure to exercise ordinary care to prevent material injury to SBHCD or the commission of an
intentional act with knowledge that it is likely to result in material injury to the SBHCD), (ii)
fraudulent activities, (iii) crimes or acts of moral turpitude, (iv) any breach of a duty to SBHCD,
a patient, or any third party payor, (v) sexual harassment or abuse, or (vi) or any other action or
omission that could materially affect SBHCD’s business or reputation in an adverse manner.

Termination/Expiration Not Subject to Fair Hearing. It is agreed between the parties that should either
party exercise its right to terminate this Agreement such decision to terminate, and the actual termination
or expiration of this Agreement, shall apply to rights under this Agreement only and not to Physician’s
medical staff privileges or membership on the medical staff of Hospital. The termination or expiration of
this Agreement shall not be subject to the Fair Hearing Plan of the Medical Staff Bylaws, the hearing
procedures provided by Healthcare District Law, or any other fair hearing procedure regarding medical
staff appointments or privileges.

ARTICLE 6 - INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR

Independent Contractor Status. Physician is engaged in an independent contractor relationship with
SBHCD in performing all work, services, duties, and obligations pursuant to this Agreement. Neither
SBHCD nor Hospital shall exercise any control or direction over the methods by which Physician
performs work and functions, except that Physician shall perform at all times in strict accordance with
then currently approved methods and practices of Physician’s professional specialty. SBHCD’s sole
interest is to ensure that Physician performs and renders services in a competent, efficient, and satisfactory
manner in accordance with high medical standards.

Independent Contractor Responsibilities. The parties expressly agree that no work, act, commission, or
omission of Physician pursuant to the terms and conditions of this Agreement shall be construed to make
or render Physician, the agent or employee of SBHCD or Hospital. Physician shall not be entitled to
receive from SBHCD or Hospital vacation pay, sick leave, retirement benefits, Social Security, workers’
compensation, disability or unemployment insurance benefits or any other employee benefit. Physician
shall be solely responsible for paying when due all income, employment and withholding taxes and
employment benefits, if any, including estimated taxes, incurred as a result of the compensation paid by
SBHCD to Physician for Services under this Agreement. Physician is responsible for providing, at his/her

Page 4 of 9

Sutter, MD - PSA eff 4-10-25

Page 62



own expense, disability, unemployment, workers’ compensation and other insurance (if applicable),
training, permits and licenses.

ARTICLE 7 - REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES

7.1 SBHCD Representations and Warranties. SBHCD for itself, and its board of directors, officers,

employees, and agents (collectively, “Agents™), represents and warrants to SBHCD, upon execution and
while this Agreement is in effect, as follows:

7.1.1

7.12

SBHCD has all requisite power and authority to enter into this Agreement and to perform its
obligations under this Agreement;

This Agreement has been duly authorized, executed, and delivered by SBHCD and is a legal,
valid, binding obligation of SBHCD, enforceable in accordance with its terms;

The parties have bargained at arms’ length to determine Physician’s compensation under this
Agreement, the compensation is fair market value for the Services; and the compensation is
consistent with fair market value for similar services in the community; and

The execution and delivery of this Agreement and the consummation of the transactions
contemplated hereby by SBHCD will not violate and provisions of, or constitute a default under,
and contract or other agreement to which SBHCD is a party or by which it is bound, other than
violations, defaults or conflicts that would not materially and adversely affect the ability of
SBHCD to perform the its obligations pursuant to this Agreement.

72 Physician Representations and Warranties. Physician, for Physician and Physician’s Agents, represents

and warrants to SBHCD, upon execution and while this Agreement is in effect, as follows:

7.2.1

7.2.2

7.2.3

724

7.2.5

7.2.6

7.2.7

7.2.8

Sutter, MD - PSA eff 4-10-25

Physician is not bound by any agreement or arrangement which would preclude Physician from
entering into, or from fully performing the Services;

Physician's license to practice medicine in California or in any other jurisdiction has never been
denied, suspended, revoked, terminated, voluntarily relinquished under threat of disciplinary
action, or restricted in any way;

Physician's medical staff privileges at any health care facility have never been denied, suspended,
revoked, terminated, voluntarily relinquished under threat of disciplinary action, or made subject
to terms of probation or any other restriction;

Physician has not in the past conducted, and is presently not conducting, his/her medical practice
in such a manner as to cause Physician to be suspended, excluded, barred or sanctioned under
Medicare or Medi-Cal, or any government licensing agency, nor have they every been convicted
of a criminal offense related to health care, or listed by a federal agency as debarred, excluded or
otherwise ineligible for federal program participation;

Physician has, and shall maintain throughout the term of this Agreement, an unrestricted license
to practice medicine in California and Medical Staff privileges at Facility;

Physician has all requisite power and authority to enter into this Agreement and to perform its
obligations under this Agreement;

This Agreement has been duly authorized, executed, and delivered by Physician and is a legal,
valid, binding obligation of Physician, enforceable in accordance with its terms; and

The parties have bargained at arms’ length to determine Physician’s compensation under this
Agreement, the compensation is fair market value for the Services; and the compensation is

consistent with fair market value for similar services in the community; and
Page 5 of 9

Page 63



8.1

9.1

9.2

Sutter, MD - PSA eff 4-10-25

72.9 The execution and delivery of this Agreement and the consummation of the transactions
contemplated hereby by Physician will not violate and provisions of, or constitute a default under,
and contract or other agreement to which Physician is a party or by which it is bound, other than
violations, defaults or conflicts that would not materially and adversely affect the ability of
Physician to perform the Services required under this Agreement.

ARTICLE 8 - LIABILITY/MALPRACTICE INSURANCE COVERAGE

Coverages. SBHCD shall maintain general and professional liability insurance coverage for Physician
for Services provided by Physician to SBHCD patients during the term of this Agreement in a minimum
amount of $1,000,000 per occurrence and $3,000,000 annual aggregate. In the event the coverage that
SBHCD obtains to comply with this Section of this Agreement is a “claims made” policy, and SBHCD,
as applicable, changes insurance carriers or terminates coverage upon or after termination of this
Agreement, SBHCD shall immediately obtain and shall maintain “tail” coverage in the amounts otherwise
required under this Section for at least seven (7) years following termination of this Agreement.

ARTICLE 9 - PROTECTED HEALTH INFORMATION

Protected Health Information. Physician shall maintain the confidentiality of all Protected Health
Information (“PHI”) in accordance with all applicable federal, state, and local laws and regulations,
including, but not limited to, the California Confidentiality of Medical Information Act and the Federal
Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996 and regulations promulgated thereunder
(“HIPAA”). Without limiting the foregoing, Physician agrees to maintain PHI, as defined from time to
time under HIPAA, which may be made available to or received by Physician pursuant to this Agreement,
in accordance with the requirements of HIPAA. Physician agrees that Physician shall:

9.1.1 Not use or further disclose PHI in a manner that would violate HIPAA if done by Hospital or
violate the requirements of applicable laws or this Agreement;

9.1.2 Use appropriate safeguards to prevent use or disclosure of PHI except as permitted by law and
the terms of this Agreement, and report to Hospital any use or disclosure of PHI not permitted by
law or by this Agreement of which Physician becomes aware;

9.1.3 Comply with the elements of any compliance program established by Hospital that applies to the
use or disclosure of PHI and ensure that any subcontractors or agents to whom Physician provides
PHI agree to the same restrictions and conditions that apply to Physician with respect to such

PHI;

9.1.4 In accordance with HIPAA, (i) make available PHI to the subject Patient; (ii) make available PHI
for amendment and incorporate any amendments to PHI; and (iii) make available the information
required to provide an accounting of disclosures of PHI to the subject Patient;

9.1.5 Make Physician’s internal practices, books, and records relating to the use and disclosure of PHI
available to the Secretary of the United States Department of Health and Human Services for
purposes of determining Hospital’s and Physician’s compliance with HIPAA;

9.1.6 At termination of this Agreement, return or destroy all PHI received from or created by SBHCD
and retain no copies of such PHI or, if return or destruction is not permissible under law or the
terms of this Agreement, continue to maintain all PHI in accordance with the provisions of this
Section and limit further uses and disclosures to those purposes that make the return or destruction
of the information infeasible.

Electronic Protected Health Information (“EPHI”). Physician agrees that Physician will: (i) implement
administrative, physical, and technical safeguards that reasonably and appropriately protect the
confidentiality, integrity, and availability of the EPHI that Physician creates, receives, maintains, or
transmits on behalf of SBHCD; (ii) report to SBHCD any security incident with respect to EPHI of which

Page 6 of 9

Page 64



Physician becomes aware; and (iii) ensure that any agent, including a subcontractor, to whom Physician
provides EPHI agrees to implement reasonable and appropriate safeguards to protect such information.

ARTICLE 10 - REQUIRED DISCLOSURES

10.1  Required Disclosures. Physician shall notify SBHCD in writing within three (3) days after any of the
following events occur:

10.1.1 Physician's license to practice medicine in the State of California or any other jurisdiction lapses
or is denied, suspended, revoked, terminated, voluntarily relinquished (under threat of
disciplinary action) or made subject to terms or probation or other restriction;

10.1.2 Physician's medical staff membership and/or privileges at any health care facility or entity are
denied, suspended, revoked, terminated, voluntarily relinquished (under threat of disciplinary
action), or made subject to terms of probation or other restriction;

10.1.3 Physician is required to pay damages in any malpractice action by way of judgment or
settlement, except that Physician shall not be required to breach a settlement or confidentiality

agreement,

10.1.4 Receipt of notice of the commencement of any investigation into Physician's medical license or
Physician's medical practice by the Medical Board of California, California Attorney General,
the Department of Health and Human Services Office of Inspector General, the Department of
Justice, or any other entity of federal, state, or local government;

10.1.5 Physician's Drug Enforcement Agency registration number is revoked, suspended, terminated,
relinquished, placed on terms of probation, or restricted in any way;

10.1.6 An event occurs that substantially interrupts all or a portion of Physician's professional practice,
that materially adversely affects Physician's ability to perform Physician's obligations
hereunder, including the Services, or which could likely cause Physician to be in breach of this
Agreement; or

10.1.7 Physician's conviction of a criminal offense related to health care or any Physician's listing by a
federal agency as being debarred, excluded or otherwise ineligible for federal program
participation.

ARTICLE 11 - GENERAL PROVISIONS

11.1  Notices. Any notice to be given to any party hereunder shall be deposited in the United States Mail, duly
registered or certified, with return receipt requested, with postage paid, and addressed to the party for
which intended, at the addresses set forth in the signature block, or to such other address or addresses as
the parties may hereafter designate in writing to each other.

SBHCD: San Benito Health Care District
911 Sunset Drive
Hollister CA, 95023

Physician: Lorilee Sutter, M.D.
3596 Savanna Way
Palm Springs CA, 92262

112  No Waiver. No waiver of any of the provisions of this Agreement shall be deemed, or shall constitute, a
waiver of any other provision, whether or not similar, nor shall any waiver constitute a continuing waiver.
No waiver shall be binding unless executed in writing by the party making the waiver.

Page 7 of 9
Sutter, MD - PSA eff 4-10-25

Page 65



11.3

11.4

11.5

11.6

11.7

11.8

11.9

11.10

Governing Law and Venue. This Agreement shall be governed by, construed and enforced in accordance
with the laws of the State of California. Venue shall be in the County of San Benito, California.

Ownership of Patient Records. All Clinic and Hospital patient records shall be maintained by SBHCD
and are the property of SBHCD. Physician shall have the right to access such records during normal
business hours.

Patient Choice. Notwithstanding anything herein to the contrary, all compensation paid to Physician
pursuant to this Agreement is solely for the purpose of obtaining the services of Physician for patients of
the SBHCD community. The parties recognize and affirm the importance of individual patient choice in
selection of medical services. Nothing contained in this Agreement shall be interpreted to obligate,
encourage, or solicit, in any way, the referral of any individual patient to any health care facility, including
the Facility, contrary to that patient’s choice of another provider of medical services. Further, nothing in
this Agreement shall be interpreted to prevent, restrict, or discourage the Physician from referring patients
to any other provider of health care services.

Exclusive Property of SBHCD. All data, files, records, documents, promotional materials, and similar
itemns relating to the business of SBHCD, whether prepared by or with the assistance of Physician or
otherwise coming into Physician’s possession shall remain the exclusive property of SBHCD and shall
not be removed from SBHCD’s facilities under any circumstances without the prior written consent of
SBHCD.

Confidentiality. The parties acknowledge and agree that during the term of this Agreement and in the
course of the discharge of Physician’s duties hereunder, Physician shall have access to and become
acquainted with information concerning the operation of SBHCD, and information which, pursuant to
applicable law and regulation, is deemed to be confidential, including, but not limited to, trade secrets,
medical records, patient medical and personal information, and personnel records. Physician agrees that
such information shall not be disclosed either directly or indirectly to any other person or entity or used
by Physician in any way either during the term of this Agreement or at any other time thereafter, except
as is required herein. Physician understands breach of this article will be an irremediable breach of this
Agreement. Such breach will result in immediate termination of this Agreement.

Binding Agreement; No Assignment. This Agreement shall be binding upon and shall inure to the benefit
of the parties to it and their respective legal representatives, successors, and permitted assigns. No party
may assign this Agreement or any rights hereunder, or may they delegate any of the duties to be performed
hereunder without the prior written consent of the other party.

Dispute Resolution. If any dispute, controversy, or claim arises out of this Agreement, for a period of
thirty (30) days following written notice of the dispute, controversy or claim from one party to the other,
the parties will use their good faith efforts to resolve the dispute, controversy, or claim. If the matter
cannot be resolved by the parties in this fashion, then such dispute, claim or controversy shall be heard in
San Benito County, California, pursuant to the provisions of California Code of Civil Procedure Sections
638 through 645.1, inclusive. The hearing shall be final and binding to the greatest extent permitted by
law, and the cost thereof, including reasonable attorneys’ fees, shall be borne by the losing party in such
proportions as the referee may decide. Judgment on the award may be entered in any court having
jurisdiction thereof.

Section 952 of Omnibus Budget Reconciliation Act of 1980. In accordance with Section 952 of the
Omnibus Reconciliation Act of 1980 (PL 96-499), Physician agrees that the books and records of
Physician will be available to the Secretary of Department of Health and Human Services and the
Comptroller General of the United States, or their duly authorized representatives, for four (4) years after
termination of this Agreement. In the event that any of the services to be performed under this Agreement
are performed by any subcontractor of Physician at a value or cost of $10,000 or more over a twelve (12)
month period, Physician shall comply and assure that such subcontractor complies with the provisions of
Section 952 of the Omnibus Reconciliation Act of 1980. If not applicable to this Agreement, this Section
shall automatically be repealed.

Page 8 of 9

Sutter, MD - PSA eff 4-10-25

Page 66



11.11 Entire Agreement: Amendment. This Agreement, its exhibits, and all referenced documents constitute
the entire agreement between the parties pertaining to the subject matter contained herein. This
Agreement supersedes all prior and contemporaneous agreements, representations and understandings of
the parties which relate to the subject matter of this Agreement. No supplement, amendment or
modification of this Agreement shall be binding unless executed in writing by all of the parties.

The parties hereby executed this Agreement as of the Effective Date first set forth above.

SBHCD PHYSICIAN
SAN BENITO HEALTH CARE DISTRICT Lorilee Sutter, M.D.
By: By:
Mary T. Casillas, Chief Executive Officer Lorilee Sutter, M.D.
Date: Date:
Page 9 of 9

Sutter, MD - PSA eff 4-10-25

Page 67



A2

A3

A4

EXHIBIT A
PHYSICIAN SERVICES AND COMPENSATION
Further Description of Medical Services. Physician shall provide professional medical services in

Physician’s specialty at locations specified by SBHCD, which will be within the SBHCD healthcare district
boundaries, or at facilities within thirty (30) miles of the SBHCD Hospital.

A.1.1 Professional Services. Physician shall provide Services in the Clinic beginning on the Effective
Date. Physician shall provide such services in coordination with other physicians who are
contracted with SBHCD to provide similar services to patients and pursuant to a mutually agreed-
upon schedule. If Physician and other physicians cannot agree on such a schedule, SBHCD shall
determine the schedule.

A.1.2 Specialty Services. Physician shall provide the following Rheumatology Services.

A.1.3 Clinic Services. Clinic operating hours are Monday through Friday, from 8:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m.
Physician shall provide the following Clinic Services in the Clinics in accordance with the schedule
set forth in Section A.2 of this Exhibit A:

A.1.3.1 New and follow-up office visits;

A.1.3.2 Consultations;

A.1.3.3 Post discharge follow-up visits;

A.13.4 Ensuring the quality, availability, and expertise of medical services rendered in the Clinic
and at Clinic-related activities;

A.13.5 Supervising physician assistants and nurse practitioners (collectively referred to as “Mid-
Level Practitioners”) as necessary for reimbursement or consult in the absence of the
Medical Director;

A.13.6 Coordination of medical activities of the Clinic as a whole to be accomplished through
continuous communication with appropriate SBHCD administrative personnel regarding
medical administration of the Clinic;

A.13.7 Assisting with the development of a plan for quality assurance for the Clinic;

A.1.3.8 Provide required chart review and audits of care provided by Mid-Level Practitioners

Schedule. Physician’s schedule shall include Professional Services to SBHCD patients on a part-time basis
consisting of eighty (80) hours per month, 48 weeks per year. Schedule to be mutually agreed upon between
SBHCD and Physician.

Hospital Call Coverage. There is no Hospital Call Coverage provision associated with this Agreement.

Compensation.

A4.1 Compensation Methodology Compliance. In order to maintain continuity in the Compensation
Methodology under this Agreement and to ensure commercial reasonableness and fair market value
compensation to Physician for Services provided under this Agreement in compliance with Stark
Law and Anti-Kickback regulations, SBHCD and Group agree that SBHCD retains the right to
continue, for the term of this Agreement, application of the compensation formula in this
Agreement.

A.42 Compensation. Physician’s Compensation, which includes professional services and supervision
(“Compensation”), shall be paid on a monthly basis on SBHCD’s standard payment cycle for
similar agreements and shall be in the amount of One Hundred Ninety-Five Dollars and No Cents
($195.00) per hour for Rheumatology Professional Services.

Exhibit A — Page 1 of 2

Sutter, L. PSA eff 4-10-25

Page 68



A.4.3 Payment on Termination. On termination of this Agreement, which is not extended, renewed or
superseded by another agreement, SBHCD shall pay to Group any amounts due to Group within
forty-five (45) days after the termination of this Agreement.

A4.4 Agreement Includes All Compensation from SBHCD. Incorporated into compensation under
the Agreement, unless specifically excluded, are all the Physician’s sources of practice revenues
and income, including Hospital Call coverage stipends, other hospital on-call fees, hospital stipends,
and reading fees; provided, however, that services as a medical director within SBHCD, service on
medical staff or SBHCD positions such as department chair or chief of staff, call panels which are
not currently in effect, or other items specifically excluded by written agreement between Physician
and SBHCD shall be independently compensated to Physician by SBHCD, if any, and are not
subject to the terms of this Agreement.

A.5 Services and Activities in Support of SBHCD. SBHCD and Physician acknowledge and agree that certain
services and activities may be required of Physician in support of SBHCD and Clinic to ensure a continuing
high level of patient care. To that end, Physician shall participate in functions/events from time to time, in
support of the SBHCD Clinics and the SBHCD facilities. In addition, to assist in the recruitment and
retention of highly skilled practitioners, upon SBHCD’s request, Physician shall participate in recruitment
meetings with SBHCD physician candidates. SBHCD shall reimburse Group for reasonable meal expenses
incurred as part of meeting with physician candidates hosted at the request of SBHCD.

A.6 Practice Guidelines/Best Quality Practices. Physician shall demonstrate cooperative work arrangements
with the Medical Staff, Quality and Safety Leadership and SBHCD Administration to achieve mutually
accepted practice guidelines and the best quality practices. These practices will be evidenced based, and
include at minimum the following:

A.6.1  Attendance at regular monthly meetings with SBHCD Clinic and Hospital leadership when
requested to review any operational or quality issues.

A.6.2 Timely completion of all incomplete inpatient records, including completion of all admission and
discharge medication reconciliation.
Goal: As specified by Medical staff rules and regulations or hospital policy.

A63 Completion of all office visit notes within seven (7) days of visit.

A.6.4 Timely signing of orders.
Goal: As specified by Medical staff rules and regulations or hospital policy.

A.6.5 Timely discharges summaries.
Goal: As specified by Medical staff rules and regulations or hospital policy.

A.6.6 Commitment to use of SBHCD supported electronic health/medical record platforms.

A.6.7 Compliance with all governmental and SBHCD quality reporting initiatives that may come into
effect from time to time.

A6.8 Timely arrival at Hospital for scheduled procedures and Clinic for scheduled patient visits.

Exhibit A —Page 2 of 2
Sutter, L. PSA eff 4-10-25

Page 69



"Sunoswr sopUNIO)) PIEOg Yoed J8 PApIsu Ik SISqUISIN preoq (7) om],

o
N~
(O]
(@)
©

al

Juowaoe(dal e pury asead ‘puape 01 jqeun Jj

IBYD
yjuow ayj Jo Aepsany, :«WMM mﬂw%ﬂww% X HEIS [BOIPIIN 03 doy preog ADHS
“urd (0:1-00:Z1/yruou yoes AepsIny], puZ X preog uoyepunoy 0} doy preog AOHES
‘wrd 00:21-00:01/Upu0UW Yord ABPUOIA] 5T X preog] Arey[ixny 03 doyf preog QOHES

$2AN¥IUISIIdIY pIeog
pa[npayos Ssy/Ajenuuy X X« $90JN0SoY UBWINY
PIINPaYOS SY/A[[enuuy X« X 2o1IWIWIO)) SAIOI[04 pIeog/SMelAg
$33)IUWo)) AI0SIAPY/90H PV
wrd 9g:p-0€: €/ A10uend X X 29I UIWOY) UOIORISIIES Judlle]
‘wrd (0:5-00:f/A119ueng) X Xx sopwwo)) uruue[d o1391enS
wrd (g6 — Q€ p/yIuowW Yoes ABPUol X« X oo dueul J
"wrd oty - 00:p/AIypuow-1q Aepsiny [, ¢ X X sapiwwo) dojaAa( "dAS/sanIIoR ]
jueidwo)) 19y UMOo.Ag/SdPIWUO)) pleoyg
soun | Sunod ojeduy ZouRg [o1qen Jord uosuyof uourugissy

$COT-r20C — SINAWNDISSY AALLVINASAYdAY ¥ ALLLINWOD

§4072241(T Jo pavog
PLYSIT 2400 YIDIF] 0}UIYG UDS



	3.27.25 SBHCD Board Meeting Agenda (Final)
	Closed Session Agenda 3.27.25 (Final)
	SBHCD BOD Meeting Packet 3.27.25



